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COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT-FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2016 

October 31, 2016 

To the Metropolitan Sewerage District of Buncombe County, North Carolina 

Board of Directors, Bondholders, and Customers 

We are pleased to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the 

Metropolitan Sewerage District of Buncombe County, North Carolina (MSD or District) for the 

fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. State law requires local governments to publish within six 

months of the close of each fiscal year a complete set of financial statements presented in 

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 

(GAAP) and audited in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 

States of America by a firm of licensed certified public accountants. MSD’s Bond Order requires 

release of such audited financial statements within seven months of the close of the fiscal year. 

This CAFR presents MSD’s financial statements, and adds this transmittal letter and statistical 

data to assist the reader in analyzing our financial statements. 

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the District. 

Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of 

all of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these 

representations, MSD’s management established an internal control framework designed both 

to protect the District’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable 

information for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the 

cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, MSD’s framework of internal 

controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the 

financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, 

to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all 

material respects. 

Cherry Bekaert LLP, a firm of licensed certified public accountants, has audited the financial 

statements. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable but not absolute 

assurance that MSD’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, are free of 

material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence 

supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting 

principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the 
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overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the 

audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified opinion that MSD’s 

financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, are fairly presented in conformity 

with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial 

section of this report. 

Accounting standard (GASB No. 34) requires that management provide a narrative introduction, 

overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to 

complement the MD&A, which is placed immediately following the report of the independent 

auditors, and should be read in conjunction with it. 

Accounting standard (GASB No. 44) calls for revised statistical reports designed to increase 

assistance to the reader in assessing the financial situation and condition of the District. 

Readers may note some changes in report formats from prior years. In addition, new schedules 

for which there is no information prior to implementation of GASB No. 34 may have less than 

the otherwise required ten years of comparative data. 

Financial trend information is presented to assist readers in understanding and assessing how a 

government’s financial position has changed over time. Revenue capacity information is 

intended to assist users in understanding and assessing the factors affecting a government’s 

ability to generate revenues. 

Debt capacity information is designed to assist users in understanding and assessing a 

government’s debt burden and its ability to issue additional debt. Demographic and economic 

information is intended to assist users in understanding the socioeconomic environment 

within which a government operates and provide information that facilitates comparisons of 

financial statement information over time and among governments. Operating information 

should provide contextual information about a government’s operations and resources to assist 

readers in using financial statement information to understand and assess a government’s 

economic condition. 

Profile of the District 
A. Overview 

The District was created by the state of North Carolina in 1962 to provide a wastewater 

treatment plant serving the City of Asheville and surrounding communities, including 

Biltmore Forest, Weaverville, Black Mountain, Montreat, Woodfin, the Woodfin Sanitary 

Water & Sewer District, and certain other unincorporated areas of Buncombe County. 

Through separate contractual arrangements, the District also serves customers in the 

Cane Creek Water and Sewer District in northern Henderson County and in the Avery 
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Creek Sanitary Sewer District in southern Buncombe County. The collection system has 

been extended over the years as a result of expansion and development, and now 

collects wastewater through approximately 1,000 miles of sewer line with 28,000 

manholes and serves over 54,000 residential and commercial customers and over 20 

significant industries. 

The wastewater treated by the District is gathered in the collector sewer systems located 

primarily within the boundaries of the municipalities and other political subdivisions 

comprising the District and conveyed to the wastewater treatment plant through large 

sewer lines called interceptors that generally run parallel to the French Broad River, the 

Swannanoa River or one of their primary and secondary tributaries. Included in the 

system are remote pumping stations that pump wastewater through force mains where 

gravity flow is not feasible. 

With the Sewer Consolidation, which was signed in 1990, the District agreed to take 

possession of and to operate, maintain, and repair or replace, as necessary, the various 

collector sewer systems, which were simultaneously deeded to MSD by these same 

political subdivisions. Many of the collector sewer systems were undersized, 

deteriorated, and inadequately maintained. Since taking over the sewer systems, the 

District has developed and implemented, with input from its member political 

subdivisions, an ongoing Capital Improvement Program (the “CIP”). Approximately 

1,118,000 linear feet of existing sewer line have been replaced since consolidation, 

representing over 21.2% of the entire collection system. In addition, the District expects 

to replace another 250,000 feet of existing sewer lines over the next five years as 

mandated by our Collection System Permit. The District also has an aggressive program 

in effect for systematic preventative maintenance of collector sewers. The lines are first 

cleaned using water under high pressure and then are videotaped. The cleaning reduces 

line blockages and overflows, and the videotapes enable the District to locate and repair 

problems in the lines. The District cleans and inspects by videotaping between 15% and 

20% of its system each year. 

The District also owns, operates, and maintains a 40 million gallon per day (MGD) 

wastewater treatment plant to treat raw sewage and industrial wastewater as well as a 

hydroelectric facility, which is used primarily to generate power for the wastewater 

treatment plant, but also provides electricity for sale back to the local utility. 

Member agencies providing water service include the sewer fees on their water bills and 

provide customer service and collection services to the District for a negotiated fee. 

However, the District direct bills about 425 customers, predominantly local industries, 

and private residences served by wells, yet connected to the sewer system. 
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B. Budget 

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the District’s financial planning and 

control. The Bond Order requires that the District adopt its final budget on or before 

June 15 of each year after a preliminary budget hearing no more than 30 days prior to 

adoption. North Carolina General Statutes call for an annual balanced budget ordinance 

based upon expected revenues, along with a budget message, to be presented to the 

governing board no later than June 1. During the spring, District departmental staff work 

with the Board’s Finance and Personnel Committees to develop an operational budget by 

function (administration, system services, plant operation, etc.), and District engineers 

work with the Board’s Planning and Capital Improvement Plan Committees on a capital 

budget. 

After the Board approves the budget, it is administered by Department heads who may 

make transfers of appropriations within a department and by the General Manager who 

may make transfers between departments. 

Budget to actual comparisons of financial data for the year ended June 30, 2016 may be 

found in the supplemental information following the notes to the financial statements. 

Factors Affecting Financial Condition 
The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is 

considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the District 

operates. 

A. Local Economy 

The Asheville-Buncombe County area in which the District is located possesses a 

combination of characteristics that help protect it in the current economic climate. They 

consist of a re-emerging more technologically advanced industrial base, a strong tourism 

position, concentrated healthcare employment, manufacturing diversity, and positive 



Metropolitan Sewerage District of Buncombe County, North Carolina Page | 5 

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT-FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2016 

population in-migration. These factors are discussed in further detail in the 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). 

Local economic development initiatives and various private/public programs have arisen 

in response to these recent developments designed to strengthen the local economy. 

Industrial recruitment, workforce development, urban revitalization, broadband access, 

and improvements to interstate highways are examples of active and pending projects. 

Area leaders realize the importance of cooperation and action to maintain a healthy, 

diverse, and sustainable economy. 

While industrial usage is uniform, residential and commercial expansion has resulted in 

a higher demand for MSD services, as evidenced by growth in overall revenue, and 

especially by facility and tap fees directly resulting from new development. 

The majority of new residents being District customers result from emphasis on in-fill 

development by local communities and large new subdivisions with developer-donated 

sewer infrastructure. 

B. Long-Term Financial Planning 

In 2001, the District completed a twenty-year Wastewater System Master Plan to identify 

system improvements needed to handle structural problems and wet-weather flow 

conditions, to improve the performance at the Water Reclamation Facility (WRF), and to 

prepare the system to handle expected future wastewater flows. In 2007, the District 

completed a Facility Plan, which specifically focused on the equipment and processes 

within the WRF. This plan established a methodology for prioritizing rehabilitation 

efforts at the plant.  

In November 2008, the District’s Collection System Master Plan was completed. This 

plan focuses on the orderly growth of the collection system into future service areas. As 

the sewer system grows over time, this plan will ensure that extensions of the system 

are made in an orderly fashion, in accordance with the planning policies of the District’s 

member agencies. 

In 2015, the District completed an update of its 2007 Facility Plan for the WRF. It focused 

on future regulatory requirements, the viability of existing processes, long-term costs, 

and needed performance. This comprehensive plan recommends various options for the 

future of the treatment plant, and will help the District continue to protect our local 

environment by implementing the latest technologies in a phased, cost-efficient manner. 

The short-term and mid-term projects are scheduled within the 10-year CIP. Design is 

currently underway, with construction beginning in fall 2016.  
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Location of new Plant Headworks Project 

Using these plans as guides, District engineers developed a ten-year Capital 

Improvement Program (CIP), which is updated annually. The capital budgeting process 

begins with considering projects identified in these plans, as well as those recommended 

by various departments to deal with recurring wastewater collection and treatment 

problems. Engineering staff prioritize such projects, preparing cost estimates and a 

suggested timetable for construction. The CIP Committee, consisting of representatives 

from the District’s member agencies, meets to review the program and to make 

recommendations to the Board concerning the CIP’s adoption as part of the annual 

budget. 

The CIP continues to have the largest impact on the District’s current and future 

financial position. In connection with the long-term CIP, the District prepares a ten-year 

cash flow projection, which integrates revenue and expenditure projections with 

planned capital expenditures to anticipate rate increases and timing of debt issuance. 

Major Initiatives and Accomplishments 

Collection System & Plant Rehabilitation 

The District maintains an aggressive, proactive rehabilitation program for both the regional 

1,014-mile collection system and the treatment plant facility. MSD assumed ownership and 

maintenance of the local public collection systems in 1991, and since that time over $359 million 

has been re-invested back into the system. 

Plant Headworks Project 

The District completed its new Facilities Plan in 2015. This significant, comprehensive study 

examined the various unit processes within the plant, with a focus on headworks, biological 

treatment alternatives, and the future regulatory 

climate.     

The Plant Headworks Project is the first 

recommendation of the Facilities Plan. Construction 

of this $11.5 million project is expected to begin in 

early 2017, and will provide new grit removal, a fine 

screening system, and storage for peak flows (using 

existing decommissioned digesters). Completion is 

expected in late 2018. 
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MSD Incineration Facility 

Example of Stream Crossing 

Melody Circle Sewer Project 

Incinerator System Emissions Upgrades 

The District recently completed significant 

upgrades for the plant’s incinerator. This $7.5 

million project has significantly improved the 

efficiency and performance of the system, and 

rehabilitated some of the older sections in need of 

replacement. Construction was completed in early 

2016. 

Melody Circle Sewer Rehabilitation Project 

The District rehabilitates approximately 50,000 linear 

feet (LF) of public sewer line each year. One of the 

larger sewer rehabilitation projects this past year was 

the “Melody Circle” project, which is located in the 

Swannanoa area of Buncombe County. The pipe in 

this area was in poor structural condition, triggering 

numerous maintenance calls. This project was over 

4,500 LF.  

New Salem Road Sewer Rehabilitation Project 

Another significant sewer rehabilitation project this 

past year was the “New Salem Road” project, which 

is located in Swannanoa, directly adjacent to the 

Melody Circle project shown above. This project was 

over 3,700 LF, which included over 2,900 LF of 

trenchless lining. 

Significant Reduction of Sanitary Sewer 
Overflows 

Reduction of Sanitary Sewer Overflows (SSO’s) is 

one of the District’s primary goals related to the 

collection system. This has been accomplished by 

aggressive rehabilitation and preventative 

maintenance (line cleaning) programs. Over the 

past twelve years, the District has realized a 

significant reduction of SSO’s – from 289 in FY2000 

to 53 in FY2016. 

New Salem Road Sewer Project 
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Management Award Recognition 

The District was recognized once again for outstanding wastewater treatment efforts by the 

National Association of Clean Water Agencies (NACWA) and received the prestigious NACWA 

Gold Award signifying consistent NPDES permit compliance during the 2015 calendar year. This 

marks the fifteenth consecutive year the District has been honored with a “Peak Performance 

Award” representing continued excellence in 

environmental protection.  

NACWA has established the Excellence in 

Management Recognition Program to recognize 

public clean water utilities that implement 

progressive management initiatives and thereby advance the goals of the Clean Water Act. 

NACWA is committed to clean water and a healthy environment and strives to help ensure that 

member agencies have the tools they need to meet these objectives. MSD received this award in 

2015. 

Improved Customer Service Response 

The Systems Services Department reclassified a management position to that of a first 

responder to handle emergency calls between 2:00 p.m. and 10:30 p.m. as well as holidays, 

which reduced average response time from 90 minutes in FY2006 to 33 minutes in FY2016. 

Environmental Regulations Compliance 

The District received favorable regulatory reports from the North Carolina Department of 

Environment and Natural Resources for wastewater discharge, pretreatment, collections 

system, and air quality permits. In addition, the District maintained ISO 14001 Environmental 

compliance certification. 

The current MSD Collection System permit has been 

submitted to the North Carolina Department of 

Environmental and Natural Resources. The planned 

footage for the new permit cycle requires 

replacement or rehabilitation of at least 250,000 LF 

of sewer main over a five-year period. In FY2016, the 

District completed approximately 43,000 LF.  

Another requirement of the annual Collection Systems permit is to perform preventative 

maintenance on at least 500,000 linear feet of sewer line. During the current year, the District 

cleaned over 793,000 linear feet.  

View of the MSD Treatment Facility 
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Continuing Disclosure Obligation 
The District issued revenue bonds most recently in May 2014. In accordance with the 

requirements of the Securities Exchange Commission Rule 15C-12, as amended, and the North 

Carolina Local Government Commission, the District will provide continuing disclosure 

information to recognized municipal security information repositories. This will include the 

audited financial statements, historical net revenues and debt coverage, future rate increases 

and listing of the District’s largest commercial and industrial customers. 

Financial Awards 
The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded 

a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Metropolitan Sewerage 

District of Buncombe County, North Carolina for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 

(CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. This was the twenty-first consecutive year that 

the District has achieved this prestigious award. In order to receive a Certificate of Achievement 

award, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive 

annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles 

and applicable legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement 

Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for 

another certificate. 

In addition, the District also received the GFOA’s Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for 

its annual 2016 budget document. In order to qualify for the Distinguished Budget Presentation 

Award, the District’s budget document was judged proficient in several categories, including as 

a policy document, a financial plan, an operations guide, and a communications device. This 

was the eighteenth consecutive year that the District has achieved this award. 
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Report of Independent Auditor 

The Board of Directors 

Metropolitan Sewerage District of Buncombe County, North Carolina 

Asheville, North Carolina 

Report on Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Metropolitan Sewerage District of 

Buncombe County, North Carolina (the “District”) which comprise the statement of net position 

as of June 30, 2016, and the related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net 

position and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial 

statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 

statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 

America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant 

to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 

conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 

States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 

Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 

financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 

disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 

judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 

considers internal control relevant to the District’s preparation and fair presentation of the 

financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
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circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

District’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 

evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 

accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of 

the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our audit opinions. 

Opinions 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 

the financial position of the District as of June 30, 2016, and the changes in financial position 

and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 

accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 

management’s discussion and analysis and required supplementary information, as listed in the 

table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, 

although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 

Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 

placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 

context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information 

in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 

which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 

and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, 

the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 

financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 

because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion 

or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 

collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, 

supplemental financial data, and statistical section, as listed in the table of contents, are 

presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 

statements. The supplemental financial data is the responsibility of management and was 
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derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 

the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 

applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, 

including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting 

and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 

statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 

generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly 

stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.  

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures 

applied in the audit of basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion 

or provide assurance on them. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 

October 31, 2016 on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting 

and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and 

grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our 

testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 

testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on 

compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 

Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control over financial 

reporting and compliance. 

Charlotte, North Carolina 

October 31, 2016 



Metropolitan Sewerage District of Buncombe County, North Carolina Page | 18 

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT-FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2016 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
As management of the Metropolitan Sewerage District of Buncombe County (District), we offer 

readers of the District’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial 

activities of the District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016.

Financial Highlights 
A. Net Position 

Net Position is defined as the value of all assets, plus deferred outflows of resources, less 

all liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Restricted net position is restricted by 

law, bond covenant, or other contractual arrangement, less debt incurred. The financial 

well-being of a government is reflected to a large degree by the growth of net position. 

  The District’s net position totals $360.6 million and reflects a $16.2 million or 4.7% 

increase from the prior year. The income and expense items affecting this 

improvement will be discussed in greater detail in the section below titled Financial 

Analysis of the District. 

  The $16.2 million increase is attributable to the District’s normal operations and 

includes contributed capital assets from developers of $2.4 million.  

  Net investment in capital assets increased by $19.9 million or 6.9% evidencing the 

District’s continued rehabilitation of infrastructure as well as an increase in 

developer donated sewer lines. 

B. Outstanding Debt 
  After principal repayments of $6.1 million, the District has approximately $95.4 

million of outstanding debt exclusive of related unamortized discounts and 

premiums. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic 

financial statements. The District’s basic financial statements are comprised of two 

components: the financial statements and notes to the financial statements that explain in 

more detail some of the information in the financial statements. After the notes, supplemental 

information is provided to show details about the District’s fund structure as set forth in the 

Bond Order. Budgetary information required by the North Carolina General Statutes also can be 

found in this part of the statements. 
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Basic Financial Statements 
The financial statements of the District report information about the District using accounting 

methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. There are three required 

statements, which provide both long-term and short-term information about the District’s 

overall financial status.  

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the District’s assets, plus deferred 

outflows of resources, less liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources with the difference 

reported as net position. This statement provides information about the types and amounts of 

resources (assets), deferred outflows of resources, and the obligations to the District’s 

employees and creditors (liabilities) and may be used to measure the financial health of the 

District by providing the basis for evaluating the capital structure of the District and assessing 

liquidity and financial flexibility.   

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position presents the current year’s 

results of operations and can be used to determine how successful the District has been in 

collecting revenues, controlling expenses, and recovering costs through user fees and charges. 

The final required financial statement is the Statement of Cash Flows. This statement reports 

cash receipts, cash payments, and net changes in cash resulting from operating, investing, and 

capital and related financing activities, and may be used to determine how cash originated, 

what that cash was used for, and how these activities resulted in the change to cash balance 

during the year. 

These financial statements should be evaluated with other external factors such as economic 

conditions, regional employment statistics, and population growth for a more complete analysis 

of the District’s current and future financial condition. 

Financial Analysis of the District 
A. Net Position 

As previously noted, net 

position may serve over time as 

one useful indicator of an 

entity’s financial condition. The 

District’s assets plus deferred 

outflows of resources exceeded 

liabilities by $360.6 million at 

June 30, 2016. The largest 

proportion of the District’s net 

position, approximately 86%, 

reflects the District’s net 
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investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, interceptor and collector sewer lines, 

treatment facilities, equipment, etc.), less any related debt outstanding that was issued 

to acquire these items. As these assets are required to provide wastewater collection and 

treatment services, these resources are not available for future spending. Although the 

District’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of the outstanding related debt, 

the resources needed to repay that debt must be provided by other sources as the capital 

assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. An additional $6.1 million or 1.7% of 

the District’s net position are funds restricted by the Bond Order to be held in reserve for 

either debt service or for emergency capital equipment repair or replacement. The 

remaining balance of $44.2 million is unrestricted and may be used to fund pay-as-you-

go capital projects, medical or workers’ compensation claims, replacement reserves, or 

any other legal purpose. 

The District’s overall financial position improved during the fiscal year ended June 30, 

2016 as overall net position grew by 4.7%. The District’s financial strategy is to set rates 

at a level sufficient to cover operating and debt service expenses as well as to provide 

about half of the funding for pay-as-you-go infrastructure rehabilitation. The success of 

this approach is visible in the continuing growth of the District net position. Current 

assets will decrease gradually as cash and investments are used to rehabilitate 

infrastructure, until the next planned revenue bond issuance. 

Table 1—Condensed Statements of Net Position 

FY 2016 FY 2015 

% Increase 
(Decrease) 

2016 
Versus 
2015 

Current and Other Assets $ 56,735,457 $ 62,192,180 (8.77%) 

Capital Assets, net 407,905,504 394,654,963 3.36% 

Total Assets 464,640,961 456,847,143 1.71% 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 8,556,486 7,568,857 13.05% 

Long-Term Liabilities Outstanding 102,928,993 107,144,421 (3.93%) 

Other Liabilities 9,382,373 11,056,376 (15.14%) 

Total Liabilities 112,311,366 118,200,797 (4.98%) 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 293,097 1,790,947 (83.63%) 

Net Position: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets 310,277,965 290,329,700 6.87% 

Restricted for: 

   Debt Service 5,130,843 5,981,900 (14.23%) 

   Bond Covenant 956,806 948,386 0.89% 

Unrestricted 44,227,370 47,164,270 (6.12%) 

Total Net Position  $ 360,592,984  $ 344,424,256 4.69% 
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The Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position shown in 

Table 2 below provides information concerning what contributed to the net changes 

reported in Table 1. 

Table 2—Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

The section below discusses significant factors contributing to the District’s 4.7% increase in 

net position from $344.4 million to $360.6 million. 

FY 2016 FY 2015 

% Increase 
(Decrease) 

2016 
Versus 
2015 

Operating Revenues: 

Sewer Charges $ 33,679,560 $ 32,617,886 3.25% 

Facility and Tap Fees 6,324,596    4,311,259 46.70% 

Miscellaneous 764,928 757,619 0.96% 

Total Operating Revenues 40,769,084 37,686,764 8.18% 

Operating Expenses: 

Salaries and Employee Benefits 7,183,043    6,758,251 6.29% 

Contractual Services    1,472,795    1,398,288 5.33% 

Utilities 1,058,299    1,144,711 (7.55%) 

Repairs and Maintenance 998,758 938,977 6.37% 

Other Supplies and Expenses 1,500,249 1,545,531 (2.93%) 

Insurance Claims and Expenses 2,990,973    2,682,426 11.50% 

Depreciation    9,332,957    8,543,402 9.24% 

Total Operating Expenses  24,537,074  23,011,586 6.63% 

Operating Income  16,232,010  14,675,178 10.61% 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses): 

Investment Income 237,604 209,220 13.57% 

Interest Expense  (3,139,196)  (3,352,099) (6.35%) 

Less Capitalized Interest   552,526   580,574 (4.83%) 

Gain (Loss) on Sale of Surplus Property  (106,997)  17,258 (519.98) 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (2,456,063) (2,545,047) (3.50%) 

Income before other transactions 13,775,947 12,130,131 13.57% 

Capital Contribution 2,392,781 3,078,520 (22.27%) 

Change in Net Position 16,168,728 15,208,651 6.31% 

Total Net Position, beginning of year 

As previously reported 344,424,256 330,330,198 

Cumulative affect of accounting change - (1,114,593) 

As restated     344,424,256     329,215,605 4.62% 

Total Net Position, end of year $ 360,592,984 $ 344,424,256 4.69% 
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B. Operating Revenues  
  Sewer revenues increased 3.25%. The District raised domestic sewer rates by 2.5% at 

the beginning of the fiscal year and experienced an approximate 0.8% increase in 

residential consumption as well as an approximate 1.8% increase in commercial 

consumption.  

  Facility and tap fees increased 46.7% from the previous year reflecting an increase in 

development in the area.   

C. Operating Expenses were kept fairly flat with the exception of: 
  Salaries and Employee Benefits—The District experienced a 6.29% increase in current 

year expense due to a 3.0% salary adjustment for employees as well as 536.7% 

increase in pension expense associated to the statewide Local Governmental 

Employees Retirement System.  

  Utilities Expense—An increase in internally generated hydroelectric power attributed 

to the 7.55% decrease in current year expenses. 

  Insurance Claims and Expenses—The District experienced a 11.5% increase in current 

year expense due to having a number of high dollar claims at the end of the current 

year. 

D. Investment Income—Increasing short-term interest rates resulted in the 13.57% 

increase in the District’s interest income. 

E. Interest Expense—Interest expense decreased due to the reduction of outstanding 

debt. 

F. Capitalized Interest—Interest capitalized on rehabilitated infrastructure is computed 

based on construction-in-progress beginning balances plus additions during the year. 

G. Capital Contribution—The amounts reported as capital contributions represent the 

estimated fair market value of donated sewer collection lines by developers and member 

agencies. The District has no direct control over the amount of contributions received. 

These amounts are reflected as equal income and capital expenditures in the financial 

statements. 
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration 
A. Capital Assets 

The District owns capital assets with a historical cost of $567,210,703. These assets 

consist of land (including easements), improvements including a hydroelectric dam, 

buildings, collector sewer lines, interceptor lines (large pipelines into which collector 

sewer lines feed), construction equipment and machinery, service vehicles, office 

machines, and computer hardware and software. The District has begun several projects 

expected to cost $50.9 million to complete, and at June 30, 2016, was committed to 

contracts expected to cost $1 million. 

Major capital asset transactions during the year include: 

  Rehabilitation of over 57,858 feet of sewer line including: 

  Broadview Avenue   

  Shadowlawn Drive 

  Hilliard St. @ Aston Park 

  Melody Circle GSR 

  Influent Pump Replacement 

  RBC Replacement 

  Incinerator System Upgrade 

Table 3—Capital Assets 

 FY 2016 FY 2015 

Land $ 2,515,666 $ 2,515,666 

Easements 8,828,919 8,278,294 

Improvements Other than Buildings 5,924,147 5,744,542 

Buildings 48,903,454 48,895,532 

Machinery and Equipment 75,725,979 70,072,363 

Interceptor Sewer Lines 112,335,991 112,335,991 

Collector Sewer Lines 308,625,645 294,344,620 

Construction in Progress  4,350,902  8,550,739 

Subtotal 567,210,703 550,737,747 

   
Less: Accumulated Depreciation  (159,305,199)  (156,082,784) 

   
Net Property, Plant and Equipment $ 407,905,504  $ 394,654,963  

More detailed information on the District’s capital assets is presented in Note 4 to the financial 

statements. 
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B. Debt Administration 
At June 30, 2016, the District had $95,313,540 in par value of outstanding debt. Unlike 

cities and counties, the District does not have a debt limit. However, the District’s Bond 

Order requires that user rates be set to achieve a minimum debt service coverage ratio of 

1.2 annually. This means that in any year, after the District pays all current operating 

expenses, the net revenues remaining must be at least 120% of that year’s principal and 

interest payments. 

The District holds an Aa1 rating from Moody’s Investor Service, an AA+ rating from 

Standard & Poor’s, and an AA+ rating from Fitch. These high ratings allow the District to 

pay a lower rate of interest than other entities with less favorable ratings. 

Further details on long-term debt are provided in Note 3 to the financial statements. 

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget and Rates 
The District, located in Buncombe County within the Asheville metropolitan area, has been in a 

better economic position than many other communities in the state and the nation due to 

several key factors. 

A. Unemployment—From 2003 through 2016, Asheville’s unemployment rate has been 

among the lowest compared to the other ten metropolitan areas in North Carolina. As of 

June 2016, Asheville’s unemployment rate was 4.1%. This holds well below the state and 

national averages of 5.2% and 5.1% respectively. Over the past year, about 2,700 jobs 

have been added to the economy increasing current employment to 185,600. 

B. Balanced Economic Growth—The Asheville metropolitan area has developed a unique 

and balanced economy based on several key drivers. Actions of each driver can overlap 

and support other drivers in the local economy. History has also shown that a period of 

weakness for one driver can lead to the expansion of another. 

Key drivers include: 

  Specialized health care industry  

  Stable tourism activity 

  Restructured manufacturing sector 

  Baby-boom fueled population growth 

  Resilient housing market 

  Growing professional services sector 

  Local healthcare employment—At over 35,900 workers, health services is now the 

largest industry sector in the Asheville metropolitan area. Ambulatory health 
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services are the chief source of the new jobs. Strong gains in well-paying health 

services had softened earlier losses in the traditional manufacturing sector. 

Historically, stable growth in local healthcare services has had an average annual 

rate of 2% to 4%. This is due to the concentration of tertiary care facilities and 

the in-migration of baby-boomers and retirees. Future growth in local healthcare 

services is expected to be at a more moderate rate due to the national economic 

downturn. 

  Manufacturing employment—Recent economic indicators suggest job loss in 

manufacturing has been impacted by the 2008 recession. Industry did experience 

a nominal increase in the current year. With 19,900 workers, the industry 

continues to be transformed into a high-skilled sector restructured around an 

advanced group of machinery, plastics, and electronics manufacturers. 

  Continued moderate population growth—Population growth remains a 

consistent and stable contributor to the local economy. Estimates indicate 

moderate growth patterns will continue between 1.5% and 2.0% per year. More 

than 95% of local population growth is from in-migration, with the remaining 

from births over deaths. 

  Residential Building—Asheville is a lull in the residential market. Currently, home 

sales are up 20.4% with the average price increased over 4.1%. In addition, nearly 

1,049 new residential building permits were issued in 2016. This is a 4.9% increase 

over the previous year.  

  Professional and Business Sector—The confluence of retiring baby-boomers, local 

quality of life, and economic growth has resulted in the emergence of a growing 

professional and business services sector. This sector experienced a 6.0% increase 

over the previous year. The sector includes many highly technical and well-paid 

services such as engineering and computer design, and temporary employment 

services. 

The major economic challenge facing the District is the decline of traditional industry in the 

area, especially textiles. However, the loss in industrial sewer revenues is expected to be offset 

from the growing numbers of domestic customers and increased consumption rates. 

 

Based on the District’s projections for residential, commercial, and industrial sewer use, sewer 

rates will increase by 2.5% for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017 to provide adequate funding 

for operations, debt service, and the District’s long-term Capital Improvement Program. 
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Requests for Additional Information 
This report is designed to provide an overview of the District’s finances for those with an 

interest in this area. Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or 

requests for additional information should be directed to W. Scott Powell, Director of Finance, 

Metropolitan Sewerage District of Buncombe County, 2028 Riverside Drive, Asheville, NC 28804, 

(828) 255-8211, or spowell@msdbc.org. 
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Statement of Net Position-June 30, 2016 

 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Assets:
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 27,169,542$               
Investments 15,500,938                
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 6,589,803                  
Receivables (net):  

Accounts 5,659,688                  
Sales 358,278                      
Employee 20,002                       
Interest 18,549                        

Inventories 339,409                     
Prepaid expenses 122,442                      

Total current assets 55,778,651                 

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 956,806                     

Capital assets:
Land 2,515,666                   
Easements 8,828,919                  
Plant and equipment 551,515,216               
Construction in progress 4,350,902                   
Less:  accumulated depreciation (159,305,199)              

Total property and equipment 407,905,504               

Total noncurrent assets 408,862,310              

Total assets 464,640,961               

Deferred outflows of resources: 8,556,486

Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
  Payments from current assets:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 2,615,588                   
Current portion of compensated absences payable 32,000                       

  Payments from restricted cash and cash equivalents:
Bond interest payable 1,458,960                   
Current portion of long-term obligations 5,275,825                   

Total current liabilities 9,382,373                   

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences, net of current portion 799,867                     
Other post-employment benefits 1,286,300                  
Net pension liability 563,911                      
Derivative liability 5,745,720                   
Long-term obligations, net of current maturities 94,533,195                 

Total noncurrent liabilities 102,928,993              

Total liabilities 112,311,366               

Deferred inflows of resources: 293,097                     

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 310,277,965               
Restricted for:
   Debt service 5,130,843                   
   Bond covenant 956,806                     
Unrestricted 44,227,370                  

Total net position 360,592,984$            
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and 
Changes in Net Position 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Operating revenues:

Sewer charges 33,679,560$       

Facility and tap fees 6,324,596           

Miscellaneous 764,928             

Total operating revenues 40,769,084        

Operating expenses:

Salaries and employee benefits 7,183,043           

Contractual services 1,472,795            

Utilities 1,058,299           

Repairs and maintenance 998,758             

Other supplies and expenses 1,500,249           

Insurance claims and expenses 2,990,973           

Depreciation 9,332,957           

Total operating expenses 24,537,074        

Operating income 16,232,010          

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Investment income 237,604             

Interest expense (2,586,670)         

Gain (loss) on disposal of surplus property (106,997)             

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (2,456,063)         

Income before contributions 13,775,947          

Capital contribution 2,392,781            

  

Change in net position 16,168,728           

  

Total net position, beginning of year 344,424,256       

Total net position, end of year 360,592,984$     
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Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from customers 40,355,082$       

Sales tax paid (32,370)              

Cash paid to employees for services (6,246,862)          

Cash paid for goods and services (9,189,407)           

Other operating revenue 765,823              

Net cash provided by operating activities 25,652,266         

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities

Acquisition and construction of

   capital assets (20,399,988)        

Proceeds from sale of surplus property 22,224               

Principal paid on bond maturities (6,135,825)           

Interest paid on bond maturities (3,799,727)          

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities (30,313,316)          

Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds from sale of Investments 68,482,071          

Purchases of investments (58,985,271)         

Income on investments 632,624              

 Net cash provided by investing activities 10,129,424           

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 5,468,374           

Cash and cash equivalents, July 1 29,247,777         

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30 34,716,151$          

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash

  provided by operating activities:

Operating income 16,232,010$         

Adjustments to reconcile operating  

  income to net cash provided by 

  operating activities:

Depreciation 9,332,957           

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Increase in receivables 319,451               

Increase in inventory 2,645                 

(Increase) in prepaid items (23,644)              

(Increase) in accounts payable

   and accrued expenses (82,795)              

Increase in other post-employment benefits 72,800               

Increase in accrued compensated absences 24,623                

Decrease in net pension asset 734,825              

(Increase) in deferred outflows of resources - pensions (26,667)               

Increase in net pension liability 563,911                

(Decrease) in deferred inflows of resources - pensions (1,497,850)           

Total adjustments 9,420,256           

Net cash provided by operating activities 25,652,266$        

Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities:

1.  At various times during the year ended June 30, 2016 the District received contribution of sewer lines constructed by developers with a reported

    estimated fair value of $2,392,781.

2.  During the year ended June 30, 2016,  a total of $11,575 of unrealized appreciation increased the fair value of investments not considered to be

     cash equivalents.

Statement of Cash Flows 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2016 

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
The accounting policies of the Metropolitan Sewerage District of Buncombe County, North 

Carolina (District) conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to 

enterprise-type governments. The following is a summary of the more significant accounting 

policies: 

A. Reporting Entity 
The District is a public body and body politic and corporate of the State of North 

Carolina, created pursuant to the North Carolina Metropolitan Sewerage Districts Act 

(Article 5, Chapter 162A of the General Statutes of North Carolina, as amended). The 

District was established in 1962 by the North Carolina State Stream Sanitation 

Committee for the purpose of constructing and operating facilities for sewage treatment 

within the political subdivisions serviced by the District as listed below.   

City of Asheville Town of Montreat 

Beaverdam Water and Sewer District Enka-Candler Water and Sewer District 

Town of Biltmore Forest Fairview Sanitary Sewer District 

Town of Black Mountain Skyland Sanitary Sewer District 

Busbee Sanitary Sewer District Swannanoa Water and Sewer District 

Caney Valley Sanitary Sewer District Town of Weaverville 

Crescent Hill Sanitary Sewer District Venable Sanitary District 

Woodfin Sanitary Water and Sewer District 

Under the North Carolina Metropolitan Sewerage Districts Act, the District is authorized, 

among other things, to: (a) acquire, construct, improve, extend, maintain, and operate 

any sewerage system or part thereof (including facilities for the generation and 

transmission of electric power and energy) within or without the District; (b) to issue 

revenue bonds to pay the costs of any of the foregoing; and (c) to set and collect rents, 

rates, fees and other charges for provision of sewerage services and the use of  any 

District facilities. 

The District Board consists of twelve members appointed as follows: three from the 

County of Buncombe, three from the City of Asheville, and one each from Woodfin 

Sanitary Water & Sewer District, and the Towns of Biltmore Forest, Black Mountain, 

Montreat, Woodfin, and Weaverville. 
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The District owns, operates, and maintains a wastewater treatment plant as well as the 

related network of collector and interceptor sewers. The treatment plant has a capacity 

to treat up to 40 million gallons per day, but currently receives an average of 23.6 million 

gallons per day from approximately 53,800 residential and commercial customer 

accounts transported through approximately 1,000 miles of collector sewers. 

The District’s basic financial statements include all transactions of the District for which 

the District is financially accountable. Financial accountability is defined as appointment 

of a majority of a component unit’s board and either the ability to impose the will of the 

District or the possibility that the component unit will provide a financial benefit to or 

impose a financial burden on the District. Based on these criteria, the District has 

determined that there are no component units, which come under the criteria for 

inclusion. The District is not a component unit of any other governmental entity.   

B. Basis of Presentation—Fund Accounting 
The accounts of the District are organized and operated on the basis of funds in 

accordance with the District’s Bond Order. A Fund is an independent fiscal and 

accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts comprised of assets, liabilities, 

fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses as appropriate. Fund accounting 

segregates funds according to their intended purpose and is used to aid management in 

demonstrating compliance with finance-related legal and contractual provisions. The 

minimum number of funds is maintained consistent with legal and managerial 

requirements. 

The District presents the basic financial statements on an enterprise fund basis. The 

Enterprise Fund accounts for those operations (a) that are financed and operated in a 

manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is 

that costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the 

general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user 

charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that the periodic determination of 

revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital 

maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, and other purposes.   

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 
The proprietary fund is accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement 

focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the 

operation of these funds are included on the balance sheet. Proprietary Funds are 

presented in the financial statements on the accrual basis of accounting. Under this 
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basis, revenues are recognized in the accounting period when earned and expenses are 

recognized in the period they are incurred.   

D. Budgetary Data 
Budgets are adopted as required by state statute and in compliance with the Bond Order. 

All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end. The budget is prepared using the 

modified accrual basis of accounting, which is consistent with the accounting system 

used to record transactions during the fiscal year. Expenditures may not legally exceed 

appropriations at the functional level. Management is authorized to transfer 

appropriations within a department; however, any revisions that alter total expenditures 

of any function must be approved by the governing board. There were no budget 

amendments. 

As required by North Carolina State law [G.S. 159-26(d)], the District maintains 

encumbrance accounts, which are considered to be “budgetary accounts.” 

Encumbrances outstanding at year-end represent the estimated amounts of the 

expenditures ultimately to result if unperformed contracts in progress at year-end are 

completed. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end do not constitute expenditures or 

liabilities. 

E. Deposits and Investments 
All deposits of the District are made in board-designated official depositories and are 

secured as required by State law [G.S. 159-31]. The District may designate as an official 

depository any bank or savings and loan association whose principal office is located in 

North Carolina. In addition, the Board may establish time deposit accounts such as NOW 

and SuperNOW accounts, money market accounts, and certificates of deposit. 

State law [G.S. 159-30(c)] authorizes the District to invest in obligations of the United 

States or obligations fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United 

States; obligations of the State of North Carolina, (the “State”); bonds and notes of any 

North Carolina local government or public authority; obligations of certain non-

guaranteed federal agencies; certain high quality issues of commercial paper and 

bankers’ acceptances and the North Carolina Capital Management Trust (NCCMT).   

The District’s Bond Order limits investments to: 

a. government obligations; 

b. obligations of the following agencies:  Federal Financing Bank, Federal Home Loan 

Banks; Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (except for stripped mortgage 

securities which are purchased at prices exceeding their principal amounts), The 
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Federal National Mortgage Association (except for stripped mortgage securities 

which are purchased at prices exceeding their principal amounts), the Government 

National Mortgage Association, the Federal Housing Administration and the Farmers 

Home Administration; 

c. direct general obligations of the State secured by the full faith and credit and taxing 

power of the State rated in one of the two highest rating categories by Moody’s and 

S&P; 

d. bonds and notes of any North Carolina local government or public authority (other 

than the District), subject to such restrictions as the Secretary of the Local 

Government Commission may impose, provided such bonds or notes are rated in one 

of the two highest rating categories by Moody’s and S&P; 

e. savings certificates or certificates of deposit issued by any commercial bank or 

savings and loan association organized under the laws of the State or in any federal 

bank or savings and loan association having its principal office in the State; provided, 

however, that any principal amount of such certificates in excess of the amount 

insured by the federal government or any agency thereof; or by a mutual deposit 

guaranty association authorized by the Administrator of the Savings Institutions 

Division of the Department of Commerce of the State, be fully collateralized by 

obligations reserved by financial institution; 

f. prime quality commercial paper (having original maturities of not more than 270 

days) bearing the highest rating of Moody’s and S&P and not bearing a rating below 

the highest by any nationally recognized rating service which rates the particular 

obligation; 

g. participating shares in the cash portfolio of North Carolina Capital Management 

Trust, provided that the investments of such fund are limited to those qualifying for 

investment under this definition and that said fund is certified by the Local 

Government Commission; 

h. a commingled investment pool established and administered by the State Treasurer 

pursuant to G. S. 147-69.3; 

i. repurchase agreements with respect to Government Obligations if entered into with 

certain restrictions; 

j. any other investment now or hereafter permitted for investment of funds by the 

District by the General Statutes of North Carolina, including, without limitation, 

Section 159-30 of the General Statutes of North Carolina. 
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The District’s investments with a maturity of more than one year at acquisition and 

non-money market investments are reported at fair value as determined by quoted 

market prices. The securities of the NCCMT Cash Portfolio, a SEC-registered (2a – 7) 

external investment pool, is measured at amortized cost, which is the NCCMT’s 

share price. The NCCMT Term Portfolio’s securities are valued at fair value. Money 

market investments that have a remaining maturity at the time of purchase of one 

year or less are reported at amortized cost. Non-participating interest earnings and 

investment contracts are reported at cost. 

F. Restricted Assets and Liabilities 
Any unexpended bond proceeds from the revenue bonds issued by the District are 

classified as restricted assets because their use is completely restricted to the purpose 

for which the bonds were originally issued. Cash and investments included in the 

District’s bond service and debt service reserve accounts are classified as restricted 

because their use is completely restricted for reserves and debt service of the 

outstanding bonds. The District first applies restricted resources when an expense is 

incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position is 

available. 

Any amounts payable from restricted assets are considered restricted liabilities. At June 

30, 2016, the bond interest payable of $1,458,960 and the current portion of long-term 

debt of $5,275,825 represents total restricted liabilities of the District. 

G. Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 
All receivables that historically experience uncollectible accounts are shown net of an 

allowance for doubtful accounts. This amount is estimated based on the percentage of 

receivables that were written off in prior years. The allowance was $1,257,101 as of June 

30, 2016. 

H. Inventories 
Inventories consist of materials and supplies held for consumption and expensed as 

used. Inventories are valued at cost (first-in, first-out) which approximates market. 

I. Capital Assets 
Capital assets, primarily property and equipment, are recorded at original cost at 

acquisition or construction. Donated capital assets received prior to July 1, 2015 are 

recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Donated capital assets 

received after July 1, 2015 are recorded at acquisition value. Any interest incurred during 

the construction phase of capital assets is reflected in the capitalized value of the assets 
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constructed. Assets costing at least $15,000 and with a useful life of over one year are 

capitalized. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of 

the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. Depreciation is computed 

on the straight-line basis. Assets are depreciated based on useful life estimated by 

District engineers as follows; see Note 5 for further details. 

Buildings/Waste Treatment Plants 50 years Lab Equipment 5-10 years 

Improvements other than Buildings 10-50 years Maintenance Equipment 5-10 years 

Waste Treatment/Pumping Stations 
Machinery 

10-15 years Automobiles/Trucks 5-10 years 

Interceptor Sewer Lines 50-100 years Communication Equipment 5-10 years 

Collector Sewer Lines 50-100 years Computer Equipment/Software 3-5 years 

Office Furniture/Fixtures 10 years   

J. Deferred Outflows of Resources/Inflows of Resources 
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position reports a separate section for 

deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, Deferred 

Outflows of Resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future 

period and therefore will not be recognized as an expense or expenditure until that 

period. The District has three items that meet this criterion - unamortized bond 

refunding charges, accumulated decrease in fair value of hedging derivative, and 

contributions made to the pension plan in the 2016 fiscal year. In addition to liabilities, 

the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 

inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, Deferred Inflows of 

Resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so 

will not be recognized as revenue until then. The District has one item that meets the 

criterion for this category - deferrals of pension expense that result from the 

implementation of GASB Statement 68. 

K. Compensated Absences 
The vacation policy of the District provides for the accumulation of up to forty (40) days 

earned vacation leave with such leave being fully vested when earned. Accordingly, an 

expense and a liability for compensated absences and any salary-related payments such 

as retirement contributions and payroll taxes are recorded. Accumulated earned vacation 

at June 30, 2016 is $831,867 and is included in accrued expenses. See Note 3D for further 

details. 

The District's sick leave policy provides for an unlimited accumulation of earned sick 

leave. Accumulated sick leave at June 30, 2016 amounts to approximately $2.69 million. 

Sick leave does not vest but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of retirement 
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may be used in the determination of length of service for retirement benefit purposes. 

Since the District has no obligation for the accumulated sick leave until it is actually 

taken, no accrual for sick leave has been made. 

L. Cash Equivalents 
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the District considers all highly liquid 

investments (including restricted assets) with an original maturity of three months or 

less when purchased to be cash equivalents. 

M. New Pronouncements 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued several statements not 

yet implemented by the District. Those statements, which may have a future impact on 

the District, include: 

  Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than 

Pension Plans will be effective for the District’s fiscal year beginning after June 15, 

2016. The objective of this Statement is to improve the usefulness of information 

about postemployment benefits other than pensions (other postemployment 

benefits or OPEB) included in the general purpose external financial reports of state 

and local governmental OPEB plans for making decisions and assessing 

accountability. This Statement results from a comprehensive review of the 

effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and financial reporting for all 

postemployment benefits (pensions and OPEB) with regard to providing decision-

useful information, supporting assessments of accountability and interperiod equity, 

and creating additional transparency.  

 This Statement replaces Statements No. 43, Financial Reporting for Postemployment 

Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, as amended, and No. 57, OPEB Measurements 

by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans. It also includes requirements 

for defined contribution OPEB plans that replace the requirements for those OPEB 

plans in Statement No. 25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and 

Note Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans, as amended, Statement 43, and 

Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures. 

  Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits 

Other Than Pensions, establishes new accounting and financial reporting 

requirements for governments whose employees are provided with OPEB, as well as 

for certain nonemployer governments that have a legal obligation to provide 

financial support for OPEB provided to the employees of other entities. 
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Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits 

Other Than Pensions will be effective for the District’s fiscal year beginning after June 

15, 2017. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and 

financial reporting by state and local governments for postemployment benefits 

other than pensions (other postemployment benefits or OPEB). It also improves 

information provided by state and local governmental employers about financial 

support for OPEB that is provided by other entities. This Statement results from a 

comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and 

financial reporting for all postemployment benefits (pensions and OPEB) with regard 

to providing decision-useful information, supporting assessments of accountability 

and interperiod equity, and creating additional transparency.  

This Statement replaces the requirements of Statements No. 45, Accounting and 

Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, as 

amended, and No. 57, OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-

Employer Plans, for OPEB. Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment 

Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, establishes new accounting and financial 

reporting requirements for OPEB plans.  

The scope of this Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for OPEB 

that is provided to the employees of state and local governmental employers. This 

Statement establishes standards for recognizing and measuring liabilities, deferred 

outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures. For 

defined benefit OPEB, this Statement identifies the methods and assumptions that 

are required to be used to project benefit payments, discount projected benefit 

payments to their actuarial present value, and attribute that present value to periods 

of employee service. Note disclosure and required supplementary information 

requirements about defined benefit OPEB also are addressed. 

  Statement No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures will be effective for the District’s fiscal 

year beginning after December 15, 2015. The requirements of this Statement improve 

financial reporting by giving users of financial statements essential information that 

is not consistently or comprehensively reported to the public at present. Disclosure 

of information about the nature and magnitude of tax abatements will make these 

transactions more transparent to financial statement users. As a result, users will be 

better equipped to understand how tax abatements affect a government’s future 

ability to raise resources and meet its financial obligations and the impact those 

abatements have on a government’s financial position and economic condition. 
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  Statement No. 78, Pensions Provided through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit 

Pension Plans will be effective for the District’s fiscal year beginning after December 

15, 2015. The objective of this Statement is to address a practice issue regarding the 

scope and applicability of Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 

Pensions. This issue is associated with pensions provided through certain multiple-

employer defined benefit pension plans and to state or local governmental employers 

whose employees are provided with such pensions. 

This Statement amends the scope and applicability of Statement 68 to exclude 

pensions provided to employees of state or local governmental employers through a 

cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that (1) is not a state or 

local governmental pension plan, (2) is used to provide defined benefit pensions both 

to employees of state or local governmental employers and to employees of 

employers that are not state or local governmental employers, and (3) has no 

predominant state or local governmental employer (either individually or collectively 

with other state or local governmental employers that provide pensions through the 

pension plan). This Statement establishes requirements for recognition and 

measurement of pension expense, expenditures, and liabilities; note disclosures; and 

required supplementary information for pensions that have the characteristics 

described above. 

  Statement No. 80, Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units—an amendment 

of GASB Statement No. 14 will be effective for the District’s fiscal year beginning after 

June 15, 2016. The objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by 

clarifying the financial statement presentation requirements for certain component 

units. This Statement amends the blending requirements established in paragraph 53 

of Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, as amended. 

This Statement amends the blending requirements for the financial statement 

presentation of component units of all state and local governments. The additional 

criterion requires blending of a component unit incorporated as a not-for-profit 

corporation in which the primary government is the sole corporate member. The 

additional criterion does not apply to component units included in the financial 

reporting entity pursuant to the provisions of Statement No. 39, Determining Whether 

Certain Organizations Are Component Units. 

  Statement No. 81, Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements will be effective for the 

District’s fiscal year beginning after December 15, 2016. The objective of this 

Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting for irrevocable split-

interest agreements by providing recognition and measurement guidance for 

situations in which a government is a beneficiary of the agreement. 
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This Statement requires that a government that receives resources pursuant to an 

irrevocable split-interest agreement recognize assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows 

of resources at the inception of the agreement. Furthermore, this Statement requires 

that a government recognize assets representing its beneficial interests in irrevocable 

split-interest agreements that are administered by a third party, if the government 

controls the present service capacity of the beneficial interests. This Statement 

requires that a government recognize revenue when the resources become applicable 

to the reporting period. 

  Statement No. 82, Pension Issues—an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68, and 

No. 73 will be effective for the District’s fiscal year beginning after June 15, 2016. The 

objective of this Statement is to address certain issues that have been raised with 

respect to Statements No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, No. 68, Accounting 

and Financial Reporting for Pensions, and No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 

Pensions and Related Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and 

Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68. Specifically, this 

Statement addresses issues regarding (1) the presentation of payroll-related measures 

in required supplementary information, (2) the selection of assumptions and the 

treatment of deviations from the guidance in an Actuarial Standard of Practice for 

financial reporting purposes, and (3) the classification of payments made by 

employers to satisfy employee (plan member) contribution requirements. 

N. Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 

accounting principles in the United States of America requires management to make 

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, and 

disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and 

the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual 

results could differ from those estimates. 

O. Operating and Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses 
The District defines operating revenue and expenses as those directly received and 

incurred in the process of providing wastewater collection and treatment. Nonoperating 

revenues and expenses are those resulting from incidental functions such as investment 

income, interest expense on long-term debt, and sale of surplus equipment. 
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P. Pensions 
For purposes of measuring the net pension asset, deferred outflows of resources and 

deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information 

about the fiduciary net position of the Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement 

System (LGERS) and additions to/deductions from LGERS’ fiduciary net position have 

been determined on the same basis as they are reported by LGERS. For this purpose, plan 

member contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due. 

The District’s employer contributions are recognized when due and the District has a 

legal requirement to provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized 

when due and payable in accordance with the terms of LGERS. Investments are reported 

at fair value. 

Note 2—Deposits and Investments 
A. Deposits  

All of the District’s deposits are either insured or collateralized by using the Pooling 

Method. Under the Pooling Method, which is a collateral pool, all uninsured deposits are 

collateralized with securities held by the State Treasurer’s agent in the name of the State 

Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary capacity for the District, these 

deposits are considered to be held by the District’s agent in the District’s name. The 

amount of the pledged collateral is based on an approved averaging method for non-

interest-bearing deposits and the actual current balance for interest-bearing deposits. 

Depositories using the Pooling Method report to the State Treasurer the adequacy of 

their pooled collateral covering uninsured deposits. The State Treasurer does not confirm 

this information with the District or the escrow agent. Because of the inability to 

measure the exact amount of collateral pledged for the District under the Pooling 

Method, the potential exists for under collateralization, and this risk may increase in 

periods of high cash flows.  

However, the State Treasurer enforces strict standards of financial stability for each 

depository that collateralizes public deposits under the Pooling Method and the District 

relies on the State Treasurer to monitor those financial institutions. The District’s 

formally adopted investment policy attempts to mitigate custodial credit risk for 

deposits by pre-qualifying the financial institutions receiving funds. The District also 

complies with the provisions of G.S. 159-31 when designating official depositories and 

verifying that deposits are properly secured. 

At June 30, 2016, the District’s deposits had a carrying amount of $1,886,527 and a bank 

balance of $2,091,344. Of the bank balance, $750,000 was covered by federal depository 

insurance and $1,341,344 in interest-bearing deposits was covered by collateral held 

under the Pooling Method.   
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At June 30, 2016, the District had $350 cash on hand. 

B. Investments  
As of June 30, 2016, the District had the following investments and maturities. 

Investment Type 
Valuation 

Measurement 
Method 

Fair Value 
Less Than 
6 Months 

6 to 12 
Months 1 to 2 Years 

3 to 5 
Years 

US Government Agencies 
Fair Value–

Level 1 $12,005,703 $4,503,070 N/A $ 5,001,592 $ 2,501,041 

Commercial Paper 
Fair Value–

Level 2 8,492,649 8,492,649 N/A N/A N/A 

NC Capital Management Trust–
CASH 

Amortized 
Cost  19,187,746  19,187,746 N/A N/A N/A 

NC Capital Management Trust–
TERM* 

Fair Value–
Level 1  8,644,114  8,644,114   N/A  N/A  N/A 

Total  $48,330,212 $40,827,579            N/A $   5,001,592 $ 2,501,041 

* Because the NC Capital Management Trust Term Portfolio had duration of .14 years, it was presented as 
an investment with a maturity of less than 6 months. 

All investments are measured using the market approach: using prices and other relevant information 
generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or a group of assets. 

Level of fair value hierarchy: Level 1: Debt securities valued using directly observable, quoted prices 
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets. Level 2: Debt securities are valued using a matrix 
pricing technique. Matrix pricing is used to value securities based on the securities’ relationship to 
benchmark quoted prices. 

  Interest Rate Risk—As a means of limiting its exposure to changes in fair value 

arising from rising interest rates, the District’s formally adopted investment policy 

calls for structuring the investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash 

requirements for ongoing operations and/or scheduled debt service, thereby avoiding 

the need to sell securities on the open market prior to maturity. In addition, the 

District invests operating funds primarily in shorter-term securities. 

  Credit Risk—Credit risk is the risk of loss due to the failure of the security issuer or 

backer. The District’s formally adopted investment policy mitigates credit risk by 

limiting investments to the safest types of securities and restricts the purchase of 

securities to the highest possible ratings whenever particular types of securities are 

rated. As of June 30, 2016, the District’s investments in commercial paper were at 

least P-1 by Standard & Poor’s, F-1 by Fitch Ratings, and A-1 by Moody’s Investors 

Service. The District’s investments in the NC Capital Management Trust Cash 

Portfolio carried a credit rating of AAAm by Standard & Poor’s as of June 30, 2016. The 

District’s investment in the NC Capital Management Trust Term Portfolio is unrated. 

The Term Portfolio is authorized to invest in obligations of the US government and 
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agencies, and in high-grade money market instruments as permitted under North 

Carolina General Statutes 159-30 as amended. The District’s investments in US 

Agencies (such as the Federal Nation Mortgage Association, the Federal Home Loan 

Bank, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, and the Federal Farm Credit 

Bank) are rated at least AA+ by Standard & Poor’s, AAA by Fitch Ratings, and AAA by 

Moody’s Investors Service as of June 30, 2016. The District’s investments in the above 

Government Agencies’ Discount Notes are rated at least A-1+ by Standard and Poor’s, 

F-1+ by Fitch Ratings, and P-1 by Moody’s as of June 30, 2016. 

  Custodial Credit Risk—For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the 

event of the failure of the counterparty, the District will not be able to recover the 

value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an 

outside party. The District’s formally adopted investment policy requires all 

transactions to be conducted on a delivery-versus-payment (DVP) basis and to be 

held by a contracted third-party custodian and evidenced by safekeeping receipts. At 

June 30, 2016, the District did not have any investments exposed to custodial credit 

risk.  

  Concentration of Credit Risk—The District’s investment policy mitigates 

concentration of credit risk, that is, the risk from the failure of any one entity or 

industry, by limiting the maximum amount of the District’s portfolio that may be 

invested in Bankers’ Acceptances and Commercial Paper to 20% each. In addition, 

the District’s formally adopted policy limits investment in any single issue of a non-

governmental entity to the greater of $500,000 or 1% of the entire portfolio. 

C. Hedging Derivative Instrument 
At June 30, 2016, the District had the following hedging derivative instrument: 

    Changes in Fair Value   Fair Value - June 30, 2016 

Type Objective Valuation 
Measurement 

Method 

Notional 
Amount 

Classification Amount Effective 
Date 

Maturity 
Date 

Classification Amount 

Cash Flow Hedge: 

Pay-
Fixed 
Interest 
Rate 
Swap 

Hedge of 
changes in cash 
flows on the 
2005/2008A 
Series Revenue 
Refunding 
Bonds 

Fair Value 
Level 2 

$30,550,000 Deferred 
Outflow of 
Resources 

$(1,198,094) 1/6/2005 7/1/2031 Debt $(5,745,720) 

The fair value of the interest rate swap is determined using Level 2 inputs of the fair value hierarchy. Inputs 
used in determining the fair value of the interest rate swap include both observable and unobservable 
inputs. Observable inputs include the notional amount as shown above and the variable and fixed rates 
within the swap agreement as disclosed in Note 3c. Unobservable inputs include quoted market prices for 
similar instruments, discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar techniques. 



Metropolitan Sewerage District of Buncombe County, North Carolina Page | 43 

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT-FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2016 

The mark-to-market valuation was established by market quotations from the 

counterparty representing estimates of the amounts that would be paid for replacement 

transactions. Because the coupons on the District’s variable-rate bonds adjust to 

changing interest rates, the bonds do not have a corresponding fair value increase. 

  Objective—As a means to lower its borrowing costs, when compared against fixed-

rate bonds at the time of issuance in January 2005, the District issued variable 

interest rate debt and entered into an interest rate exchange agreement (swap) in 

connection with its variable rate Series 2005 Revenue Refunding Bonds in the 

amount of $33,915,000. The intention of the swap was to effectively change the 

District’s variable interest rate on the bonds to a synthetic fixed rate of 3.4175%. In 

April 2008, the District issued $33,635,000 in Series 2008A Revenue Refunding Bonds 

to currently refund the Series 2005 Revenue Refunding Bonds. The swap described 

above now applies to the Series 2008A Revenue Refunding Bonds.  

  Terms—Under the terms of the swap, the District pays the counterparty a fixed 

payment of 3.4175% and receives a variable payment computed as 59% of the one-

month London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 35 basis points. The swap had an 

initial notional amount equal to the associated Series 2005 variable rate bond 

principal amount of $33,915,000. The swap was entered into at the same time the 

Series 2005 bonds were issued in January of 2005. Starting in fiscal year 2006, the 

notional value of the swap and the principal amount of the associated debt declined 

in equal amounts. As the swap now applies to the Series 2008A bonds, the remaining 

notional value of the swap is correlated to the variable rate bond principal amount of 

$33,635,000. Starting in fiscal year 2010, the notional value of the swap and the 

principal amount associated debt decline in similar amounts until the debt is 

completely retired. The notional amount outstanding is $30,550,000 as of June 30, 

2016. The bonds’ variable rate coupons are determined by the remarketing agent 

based on prevailing market conditions. This usually approximates The Securities 

Industry and Financial Markets Association (SIFMA). The bonds and the related swap 

agreement both mature on July 1, 2031. 

  Credit risk—As of June 30, 2016, the District was not exposed to credit risk because 

the swap had a negative fair value. However, should interest rates change and the 

fair value of the swap becomes positive, the District would be exposed to credit risk 

in the amount of the swap’s fair value. The swap counterparty was rated A1 by 

Moody’s and A by Standard & Poor’s, and A+ Fitch Ratings as of June 30, 2016. To 

mitigate the potential credit risk, if the counterparty’s credit quality falls below Baa3 

(Moody’s) and BBB-(S&P), the value of the swap may be fully collateralized by the 
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counterparty or by several other means specified in the International Swap Dealers 

Association (ISDA) Master Agreement and Counterparty Schedule. 

  Interest Rate/Basis Risk—As noted above, the swap exposes the District to basis risk 

should the relationship between LIBOR and SIFMA diverge, changing the synthetic 

rate on the bonds. The effect of this difference in basis is indicated by the difference 

between the intended synthetic rate of 3.4175% and the actual synthetic rate for the 

period ending June 30, 2016 of 3.1802%. As of June 30, 2016, the rate on the District’s 

bonds was .39% whereas 59% of one-month LIBOR plus 35 basis points was .6273%. If 

a change occurs that results in the rates’ moving in a direction unfavorable to the 

District, the expected cost savings may not be realized. 

  Termination Risk—The interest rate exchange contract uses the International Swap 

Dealers Association (ISDA) Master Agreement, which includes standard termination 

events, such as failure to pay and bankruptcy. The ISDA Schedule to the Master 

Agreement includes an “additional termination event.” That is, the swap may be 

terminated by the District if the counterparty’s credit quality rating falls below Baa3 

(Moody’s) and BBB-(S&P). The District or the counterparty may terminate the swap if 

the other party fails to perform under the terms of the contract. If the swap was 

terminated, the variable-rate bonds would no longer carry a synthetic interest rate. 

In addition, if at the time of termination the swap has a negative fair value, the 

District would be liable to the counterparty for a payment equal to the swap’s fair 

value.   

  Market Access Risk/Rollover Risk—The District’s interest rate exchange contract is 

for the term (maturity) of the bonds and, therefore, there is no market-access risk or 

rollover risk. 

Note 3—Long-Term Obligations 
A. Long-Term Debt 

The District issues debt to help finance the cost of rehabilitation of wastewater 

interceptor and collection infrastructure, and treatment plant facilities. Unlike cities and 

counties, the District has no legal debt limit. However, the District must comply with 

the legal requirements contained in its Bond Order as described in Note 10.  

The District’s borrowings are subject to federal arbitrage regulations; however, 

management does not anticipate any material liability for arbitrage from any of these 

debt issues.  
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The District currently has the following issues outstanding: 

 Original Issue Amount 

Revenue Bonds:  

 Series 2008A, Revenue Refunding Bonds $ 33,635,000 

 Series 2009A, Revenue Bonds  17,205,000 

 Series 2009B, Revenue Refunding Bonds  13,360,000 

 Series 2013, Revenue Refunding Bonds  30,230,000 

 Series 2014, Revenue Bonds  26,195,000 

  

State Revolving Fund:  

2009 North Carolina Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund $ 672,980 

The following is a summary of changes in the Districts’ long-term debt for the fiscal year 

ended June 30, 2016: 

 
Balance 

July 1, 2015 
 

Additions 
 

Retirements 
Balance 

June 30, 2016 

Revenue Bonds: 
Enka-Candler Water and Sewer District Bonds liability assumed by the Metropolitan Sewerage District of Buncombe 
County, North Carolina on July 2, 1990 as stated in the sewer consolidation agreement: 

5.00% serial bonds assumed July 2, 1990 with 
maturities on each June 1, through 2024 
varying from $19,000 to $64,000, interest 
payable annually 

 
 
 

$ 532,000 

 
 
 

$ - 

 
 
 

$ 64,000 

 
 
 

$ 468,000 

Total Bonds – Enka-Candler Series $ 532,000 $ - $ 64,000 $ 468,000 

     
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2008A issued to refund the Series 2005 Revenue Refunding Bonds: 

Interest at variable rates in the weekly mode, 
payable monthly, due serially until 2031 

 
 

$ 31,420,000 

 
 

$ - 

 
 

$ 790,000 

 
 

$ 30,630,000 

Total Bonds – Series 2008A $ 31,420,000 $ - $ 790,000 $ 30,630,000 

 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2009A issued to construct certain sewerage projects: 

2.0% to 5.00% serial bonds issued October 7, 
2009, with maturities on each July 1, 2010 
through 2024 varying from $400,000 to 
$700,000; interest payable semi-annually 

 
 
 

$ 5,770,000 

 
 
 

$ - 

 
 
 

$ 475,000 

 
 
 

$ 5,295,000 

     
5.00% term bonds issued October 7, 2009, at 
109.001%, due July 1, 2029; interest payable 
semi-annually 

 
 

$ 4,065,000 

 
 

$ - 

 
 

$ - 

 
 

$ 4,065,000 
     
5.00% term bonds issued October 7, 2009, at 
107.240%, due July 1, 2034; interest payable 
semi-annually 

 
 

$ 5,220,000 

 
 

$ - 

 
 

$ - 

 
 

$ 5,220,000 

 Total Bonds - Series 2009A $ 15,055,000 $ - $ 475,000 $ 14,580,000 
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Balance 
July 1, 2015 Additions Retirements 

Balance 
June 30, 2016 

Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2009B issued to refund portions of Series 1999 Bonds: 

2.0% to 5.00% serial bonds issued October 7, 
2009, with maturities on each July 1, 2010 
through 2019 varying from $595,000 to 
$3,100,000; interest payable semi-annually $ 1,845,000 $ - $ - $ 1,845,000 

Total Bonds - Series 2009B $ 1,845,000 $ - $ - $ 1,845,000 

Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013 issued to refund Series 2003 and Series 2008B Revenue Refunding Bond: 

2.0% to 5.00% serial bonds issued May 1, 2013, 
with maturities on each July 1, 2014 through 
2029 varying from $1,065,000 to $4,255,000; 
interest payable semi-annually $       26,150,000 $ - $ 4,255,000 $ 21,895,000 

Total Bond – Series 2013 $ 26,150,000 $ - $ 4,255,000 $ 21,895,000 

Revenue Bonds, Series 2014 issued to construct certain sewerage projects: 

2.0% to 5.00% serial bonds issued May 21, 
2014, with maturities on each July 1, 2016 
through 2039 varying from $535,000 to 
$1,430,000; interest payable semi-annually $ 21,510,000 $ - $ 535,000 $ 20,975,000 

5.00% term bonds issued May 21, 2014, at 
112.950%, due July 1, 2039; interest payable 
semi-annually $ 4,685,000 $ - $ - $ 4,685,000 

Total Bond – Series 2014 $ 26,195,000 $ - $ 535,000 $ 25,660,000 

Total Revenue Bonds $ 101,197,000 $ - $ 6,119,000 $ 95,078,000 

State Revolving Fund: 

2009 North Carolina Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund used to construct certain sewerage  projects: 

$672,980 revolving loan issued August 18, 
2009 unpaid principal sum is reduced by one-
half as "Principal Forgiveness", interest 
accrues at 0%, 20 annual installments May 1, 
2011 to 2030 $ 252,365 $ - $ 16,825 $ 235,540 

Total State Revolving Fund  $ 252,365 $ - $ 16,825 $ 235,540 

Total Long-Term Obligations $ 101,449,365 $ - $ 6,135,825 $ 95,313,540 

Plus net unamortized discounts and 
premiums 5,294,511 - 799,031 4,495,480 

106,743,876 99,809,020 

Series 2008A 790,000 825,000 

Series 2009A 475,000 495,000 

Series 2013 4,255,000 3,210,000 

Series 2014 535,000 665,000 

2009 State Revolving Fund 16,825 16,825 

Enka-Candler 64,000 64,000 

Less current portion 6,135,825 5,275,825 

$ 100,608,051 $ 94,533,195 
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Maturities of long-term debt are as follows: 

Year Ending 
June 30: Serial Maturity 

Principal 
Mandatory Sinking 
Fund Requirements 

(Term Bonds) 

Total Interest 

2017    $        5,275,825 $                        - $           5,275,825 $           3,730,993 

2018  4,325,825 -  4,325,825  3,546,688 

2019            4,485,825                            -            4,485,825              3,375,788 

2020            4,645,825                            -            4,645,825               3,198,440 

2021            5,265,825                            -              5,265,825              2,996,464 

 23,999,125 - 23,999,125 16,848,373 

Five Years:     

2026 25,072,122 1,505,000 26,577,122 11,721,937 

2031 22,172,293 4,495,000 26,667,293 6,417,401 

2036 8,670,000 3,285,000 11,955,000 2,552,240 

2041  1,430,000              4,685,000  6,115,000                 621,975 

 $        81,343,543 $        13,970,000 $      95,313,540 $        38,161,926 

The revenue bonds are secured by and payable solely from all sewer revenues of the 

District after provisions for operating expenses and from certain reserves and other 

monies of the District, as described in the Bond Order. Additional remittance 

requirements to the trustee for a sinking fund to redeem the term bonds, subordinated 

indebtedness outstanding, if any, and other purposes are set forth in the Bond Order. 

Interest expense of $552,526 has been capitalized in the cost of construction for the year 

ended June 30, 2016. Net interest expense not capitalized in 2016 was $2,586,670. 

B. Variable Debt 
  Interest Rates—Interest rates for variable debt change weekly as determined by the 

responsible remarketing agent based on competitive municipal bond rates in the 

secondary market. 

  Liquidity Agreement—The District has entered into a remarketing agreement with 

Wells Fargo to perform various functions in connection with the Series 2008A 

variable debt. The Remarketing Agent’s major responsibilities include soliciting of 

purchases of Bonds from qualified investors, processing and recordkeeping for 

such purchases, billing and receiving payment for Bonds purchased, and 

determining the interest rate on the Bonds as provided in the Series Resolution. 
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C. Hedging Derivative and Associated Hedged Debt 
As of June 30, 2016, debt service requirements of the variable-rate debt and net swap 

payments, assuming current interest rates remain the same for their term, were as 

follows.  

As rates vary, variable-rate bond interest payments and net swap payments will vary. 

Fiscal Year 
Ending June 30 

Variable Rate Bonds Interest Rate Total 

 Principal Interest Swap, Net  

2017 $ 825,000         $ 116,508          $ 833,537        $  1,775,045  

2018 855,000          113,183           809,751        1,777,934  

2019 885,000          109,741           785,127        1,779,868  

2020 920,000          106,165           759,539        1,785,704  

2021 2,075,000           98,447           704,328        2,877,775  

2022 2,160,000           90,051           644,257        2,894,308  

2023 2,235,000           81,359           582,071        2,898,430  

2024 2,320,000           72,339           517,536        2,909,875  

2025 2,400,000           63,005           450,757        2,913,762  

2026 2,485,000           53,341           381,618        2,919,959  

2027 2,585,000           43,292           309,724        2,938,016  

2028 2,685,000           32,853           235,040        2,952,893  

2029 2,785,000           22,024           157,565        2,964,589  

2030 2,890,000           10,787            77,172        2,977,959  

2031 1,240,000             5,415            38,737        1,284,152  

2032       1,285,000                       418                                           2,988            1,288,406  

 $30,630,000 $        1,018,928 $        7,289,747 $     38,938,675 

The computations above are based on the following interest assumptions. 

 
 

Terms 
Rates at 

June 30,2016 

Interest Rate Swap:   

Fixed Payment to Counterparty Fixed  3.4175% 

Variable Payment from Counterparty 59% of LIBOR plus 35 Basis Points  (.6273%) 

Net Interest Rate Swap Payments   2.7902% 

Variable-rate Bond Coupon Payments Remarketed Rate  .3900% 

Synthetic Interest Rate on Bonds   3.1802% 
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D. Compensated Absences 
Changes to the liability for compensated absences were as follows: 

Balance - June 30, 2015 $ 807,244 

 Additions  614,900 

 Withdrawals  (590,277) 

Balance - June 30, 2016 $ 831,867 

The District accounts for compensated absences on a LIFO basis, assuming that 

employees are taking leave time as it is earned. For the year ended June 30, 2016, the 

District estimates that $32,000 is the current portion of this liability. 

E. Net Pension Liability (LGERS) 
Changes to the net pension liability (LGERS) were as follows: 

Balance - June 30, 2015 $ - 

 Additions 563,911 

 Withdrawals - 

Balance - June 30, 2016 $ 563,911 
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Note 4—Capital Assets 
A summary of changes in capital assets follows below. 

 
Balance 

June 30, 2015 
 

Additions 
 

Disposals 
 

Transfers 
Balance 

June 30, 2016 

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated      

Land $ 2,515,666 $ - $ - $ - $ 2,515,666 

Easements 8,278,294 - - 550,625 8,828,919 

Buildings not currently in service 1,159,908 - - - 1,159,908 

Construction In Progress  8,550,739  19,777,069  -  (23,976,906)  4,350,902 

Total Capital Assets 
Not Being Depreciated 

 
 20,504,607 

 
 19,777,069 

 
 - 

 
 (23,426,781) 

 
 16,855,395 

      

Capital Assets Being Depreciated      

Buildings & Waste Treatment 
Plants 47,735,624 - (10,984) 18,906 47,743,546 

Improvements & Other than Bldgs. 5,744,542 - - 179,605 5,924,147 

Machinery & Equipment 63,723,547 118,287 (5,952,992) 11,147,935 69,036,777 

Interceptor Sewer Lines 112,335,991 - - - 112,335,991 

Collector Lines 294,344,620 2,369,739 (168,549) 12,079,835 308,625,645 

Automobiles & Trucks 4,590,477 409,169 (86,358) - 4,913,288 

Computer Equipment 1,160,002 38,455 (20,880) - 1,177,577 

Office Furniture & Equipment  598,337  -  -  -  598,337 

Total Capital Assets 
Being Depreciated 

 
 530,233,140 

 
 2,935,650 

 
 (6,239,763) 

 
 23,426,281 

 
 550,355,308 

      

Less Accumulated Depreciation      

Bldgs. & Waste Treatment Plants (21,522,953) (956,968) 6,135 - (22,473,786) 

Improvements & Other than Bldgs. (3,601,914) (363,050) - - (3,964,964) 

Machinery & Equipment (39,926,634) (2,615,006) 5,846,646 - (36,694,994) 

Interceptor Sewer Lines (21,879,887) (1,243,540) - - (23,123,427) 

Collector Lines (64,233,473) (3,686,742) 168,549 - (67,751,666) 

Automobiles & Trucks (3,532,161) (321,647) 68,332 - (3,785,476) 

Computer Equipment (859,412) (136,178) 20,880 - (974,710) 

Office Furniture & Equipment  (526,350)  (9,826)  -  -  (536,176) 

Total Accumulated Depreciation  (156,082,784)  (9,332,957)  6,110,542  -  (159,305,199) 

      

Total Capital Assets 
Being Depreciated, Net  

 
 374,150,356 

 
 (6,397,307) 

 
 (129,221) 

 
 23,426,281 

 
 391,050,109 

 
 

$  394,654,963 
 

$13,379,762 
 

$ (129,221) 
 

$ - 
 

$  407,905,504 

  Buildings not being depreciated—In January of 1999, the District modified its sewage 

treatment process, which resulted in retiring the digester equipment. However, the 

building in which it had been housed is still suitable for use, and accordingly, 

depreciation will not be charged until it is placed back in service. 
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  Contributed infrastructure—The District’s responsibility is to maintain existing 

collector and interceptor sewer lines as well as to provide wastewater treatment. 

The majority of sewer lines added to the District are constructed by member 

agencies or developers and donated to the District. Occasionally, owners of private 

lines will petition the District to take over their sewer lines as well. This 

infrastructure must meet minimum District engineering standards, and when 

accepted by Board action, the District assumes all responsibility for future 

maintenance and rehabilitation. During the year ended June 30, 2016, the District 

accepted capital assets with an acquisition value of $2,369,739.  

  Easements—The District acquires right-of-way easements in the course of sewer line 

rehabilitation projects. These easements have an indefinite useful life and are 

recorded at cost. During the year ended June 30, 2016, the District acquired one 

easement at no cost with an acquisition value of $23,042. 

Note 5—Pension Plan Obligation 
A. North Carolina Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System 

  Plan Description—The District is a participating employer in the statewide Local 

Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (LGERS), a cost-sharing multiple-

employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of North Carolina. 

LGERS membership is comprised of general employees and local law enforcement 

officers (LEOs) of participating local governmental entities. Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 

128 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North 

Carolina General Assembly. Management of the plan is vested in the LGERS Board of 

Trustees, which consists of 13 members – nine appointed by the Governor, one 

appointed by the State Senate, one appointed by the State House of Representatives, 

and the State Treasurer and State Superintendent, who serve as ex-officio members. 

The Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System is included in the 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The 

State’s CAFR includes financial statements and required supplementary information 

for LGERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State 

Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, by calling 

(919) 981-5454, or at www.osc.nc.gov. 

  Benefits Provided—LGERS provides retirement and survivor benefits. Retirement 

benefits are determined as 1.85% of the member’s average final compensation times 

the member’s years of creditable service. A member’s average final compensation is 

calculated as the average of a member’s four highest consecutive years of 

compensation. Plan members are eligible to retire with full retirement benefits at  
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age 65 with five years of creditable service, at age 60 with 25 years of creditable 

service, or at any age with 30 years of creditable service. Plan members are eligible to 

retire with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with 20 years of creditable service or 

at age 60 with five years of creditable service. Survivor benefits are available to 

eligible beneficiaries of members who die while in active service or within 180 days 

of their last day of service and who have either completed 20 years of creditable 

service regardless of age or have completed five years of service and have reached 

age 60. Eligible beneficiaries may elect to receive a monthly Survivor’s Alternate 

Benefit for life or a return of the member’s contributions. The plan does not provide 

for automatic post-retirement benefit increases. Increases are contingent upon 

actuarial gains of the plan. 

  Contributions—Contribution provisions are established by General Statute 128-30 and 

may be amended only by the North Carolina General Assembly. District employees 

are required to contribute 6% of their compensation. Employer contributions are 

actuarially determined and set annually by the LGERS Board of Trustees. The 

District’s contractually required contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2016 

was 6.67% for general employees  actuarially determined as an amount that, when 

combined with employee contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits 

earned by employees during the year. Contributions to the pension plan from the 

District were $553,176 for the year ended June 30, 2016. 

  Refunds of Contributions—District employees, who have terminated service as a 

contributing member of LGERS, may file an application for a refund of their 

contributions. By state law, refunds to members with at least five years of service 

include 4% interest. State law requires a 60-day waiting period after service 

termination before the refund may be paid. The acceptance of a refund payment 

cancels the individual’s right to employer contributions or any other benefit provided 

by LGERS. 

  Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and 

Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions—At June 30, 2016, the District 

reported a liability of $563,911 for its proportionate share of the net pension asset. 

The net pension asset was measured as of June 30, 2015. The total pension liability 

used to calculate the net pension asset was determined by an actuarial valuation as 

of December 31, 2014. The total pension liability was then rolled forward to the 

measurement date of June 30, 2015 utilizing update procedures incorporating the 

actuarial assumptions. The District’s proportion of the net pension asset was based 

on a projection of the District’s long-term share of future payroll covered by the 

pension plan, relative to the projected future payroll covered by the pension plan of 
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all participating LGERS employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2015, the 

District’s proportion was 0.126%, which was an increase of 0.001% from its 

proportion measured as of June 30, 2014. 

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the District recognized pension expense of $327,395. 

At June 30, 2016, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred 

inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

 
 

Deferred  
Outflows of 
Resources 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

Differences between expected and actual experience $ -  $ 132,552 

Changes in assumptions  -  - 

Net difference between projected and actual investment earnings  -  160,545 

Changes in proportion and difference between employer 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 

  
76,109 

 
 - 

District’s contribution subsequent to the measurement date  553,176  - 

Total $ 629,285 $ 293,097 

$553,176 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting 

from District contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized 

as an increase of the net pension asset in the year ending June 30, 2017. Other 

amounts reported as deferred inflows and outflows of resources related to pensions 

will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year Ending June 30:  

2016  $    (165,060) 

2017           (165,060) 

2018           (165,060) 

2019           278,192 

2020 - 

Thereafter - 

  Actuarial Assumptions—The total pension liability in the December 31, 2014 actuarial 

valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all 

periods included in the measurement: 

Inflation 3.0 percent 

Salary increases 4.25 to 8.55 percent, including inflation and productivity factor 

Investment rate of return 
7.25 percent, net of pension plan investment expense, including 
inflation 
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The plan currently uses mortality tables that vary by age, gender, employee group 

(i.e. general, law enforcement officer) and health status (i.e. disabled and healthy). 

The current mortality rates are based on published tables and based on studies that 

cover significant portions of the U.S. population. The healthy mortality rates also 

contain a provision to reflect future mortality improvements. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2014 valuation were based on 

the results of an actuarial experience study for the period January 1, 2005 through 

December 31, 2009. Future ad hoc COLA amounts are not considered to be 

substantively automatic and are therefore not included in the measurement. 

The projected long-term investment returns and inflation assumptions are developed 

through review of current and historical capital markets data, sell-side investment 

research, consultant whitepapers, and historical performance of investment 

strategies. Fixed income return projections reflect current yields across the U.S. 

Treasury yield curve and market expectations of forward yields projected and 

interpolated for multiple tenors and over multiple year horizons. Global public equity 

return projections are established through analysis of the equity risk premium and 

the fixed income return projections. Other asset categories and strategies’ return 

projections reflect the foregoing and historical data analysis. These projections are 

combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the 

expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by 

adding expected inflation. 

The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each 

major asset class as of June 30, 2015 are summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class Target Allocation Long- Term Expected 
Real Rate of Return 

Fixed Income 29.0% 2.2% 

Global Equity 42.0% 5.8% 

Real Estate 8.0% 5.2% 

Alternatives 8.0% 9.8% 

Credit 7.0% 6.8% 

Inflation Protection                           6.0% 3.4% 

Total                          100%  

The information above is based on 30-year expectations developed with the 

consulting actuary for the 2013 asset liability and investment policy study for the 

North Carolina Retirement Systems, including LGERS. The long-term nominal rates of 

return underlying the real rates of return are arithmetic annualized figures. The real 
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rates of return are calculated from nominal rates by multiplicatively subtracting a 

long-term inflation assumption of 3.19%. All rates of return and inflation are 

annualized. 

  Discount Rate—The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 

7.25%. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed 

that contributions from plan members will be made at the current contribution rate 

and that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates, 

actuarially determined. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net 

position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments 

of the current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on 

pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to 

determine the total pension liability. 

  Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Asset to Changes 

in the Discount Rate—The following presents the District’s proportionate share of 

the net pension asset calculated using the discount rate of 7.25%, as well as what the 

District’s proportionate share of the net pension asset or net pension liability would 

be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower 

(6.25%) or one percentage point higher (8.25%) than the current rate: 

 
 

1% Decrease 
(6.25%) 

Discount Rate 
(7.25%) 

1% Increase 
(8.25%) 

District's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability (asset) $ 3,932,223 $ 563,911 $ (2,273,819) 

  Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position—Detailed information about the pension plan’s 

fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued Comprehensive Annual 

Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. 

B. Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Non-Law Enforcement Officers 
401(k) Plan 
  Plan Description—The District contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income 

Plan of North Carolina, often referred to as the State’s 401(k) Plan, a defined 

contribution pension plan administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a 

Board of Trustees. The Plan provides retirement benefits to employees of the District 

who are members of LGERS. Article 5 of G.S. Chapter 135 assigns the authority to 

establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. 

  Funding Policy—Employee contributions are voluntary and must conform to 

applicable IRS limits. The District has a graduated matching contribution plan as 
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follows: if an employee contributes 1%, 2% or 3%, the District will contribute 2%, 4%, 

or 5%, respectively, of their salary to either the 401(k) plan or the 457 plan described 

below. The District Board has the authority to establish and amend contribution 

requirements. During the year ended June 30, 2016, a total of $321,189 and $382,402 

were contributed by the District and employees, respectively. 

C. Deferred Compensation Plan 
  Plan Description—The District also offers its employees a deferred compensation 

plan, another type of defined contribution plan, established under the Internal 

Revenue Code Section 457. The plan allows employees to defer receipt and taxation 

of a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not 

available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable 

emergency. The plan is administered by a third-party administrator who establishes 

and amends benefit provisions within the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code 

Section 457. 

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights 

purchased with those amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts, 

property, and rights (until paid or made available to the employee or other 

beneficiary) are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of participants and their 

beneficiaries. As such, these assets and the related obligations are not reported in 

these financial statements. 

  Funding Policy—Employee contributions are voluntary and must conform to 

applicable IRS limits. The District has a graduated matching contribution plan as 

follows: if an employee contributes 1%, 2% or 3%, the District will contribute 2%, 4%, 

or 5%, respectively, of their salary to either the 401(k) plan described above or the 

457 plan. The District Board has the authority to establish and amend contribution 

requirements. During the year ended June 30, 2016, $27,005 and $33,132 were 

contributed by the District and employees, respectively, to the deferred 

compensation plan. 

Note 6—Other Employment Benefits 
A. Death Benefits 

  Plan Description—The District has elected to provide death benefits to employees 

through the Death Benefit Plan for Members of the Local Governmental Employees' 

Retirement System (Death Benefit Plan), a multiple-employer State-administered 

cost-sharing plan funded on a one-year term cost basis. The beneficiaries of those 

employees who die in active service after one year of contributing membership in 
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the System, or who die within 180 days after retirement or termination of service and 

have at least one year of contributing membership service in the System at the time 

of death are eligible for death benefits. Lump sum death benefit payments to 

beneficiaries are equal to the employee's 12 highest months’ salary in a row during 

the 24 months prior to his/her death, but the benefit may not be below $25,000 or 

exceed $50,000. All death benefit payments are made from the Death Benefit Plan. 

The District has no liability beyond the payment of monthly contributions. 

Contributions are determined as a percentage of monthly payroll, based upon rates 

established annually by the State. Because the benefit payments are made by the 

Death Benefit Plan and not by the District, the District does not determine the 

number of eligible participants. The contributions to the Death Benefit Plan cannot 

be separated between the post-employment benefit amount and the other benefit 

amount. Contributions are determined as a percentage of monthly payroll based 

upon rates established annually by the State. The County considers these 

contributions to be immaterial. 

Note 7—Other Post-Employment Benefits 
A. Healthcare Benefits 

  Plan Description—Under terms of a District resolution, the District administers a 

single-employer defined benefit group health and dental insurance plan (the GHD 

Plan). As of May 14, 2008, the plan allow retirees to continue coverage under the 

Districts' self-insured group health and dental insurance plan until the earlier of 

reaching age 65; or becoming covered under another group medical plan; or 

failing to timely pay any required premium for such coverage. 

The District will pay the premium cost for the eligible retired employee as follows: 

Years of Service Subsidy Vesting % 

30 years at any age 100% 

25 years at 55 years of age 90% 

20 years at 55 years of age 80% 

15 years at 55 years of age 65% 

10 years at 55 years of age 55% - Existing Employees 
50% - Employees hired after 7/1/08 

5 years at 55 years of age 50% - Existing Employees 

In addition, the District’s retirees can purchase coverage for their spouse at full 

actuarial cost. The District’s Board may amend the benefit provisions. A separate 

report was not issued for the plan. 



Metropolitan Sewerage District of Buncombe County, North Carolina Page | 58 

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT-FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2016 

Membership in the District’s GHD Plan consisted of the following at July 1, 2015, the 

date of the latest actuarial valuation: 

 Employees 

Retirees Receiving Benefits 14 

Active Plan Members  147 

Total  161 

  Funding Policy—The District pays the full cost of coverage for the healthcare benefits 

provided to qualified retirees under the plan. The District has chosen to fund the 

healthcare benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. Funding for these costs is included in 

budgeted appropriations in the annual budget. For the current year, the District 

contributed $189,100 or 2.3% of annual covered payroll. The current annual required 

contribution (ARC) rate is 3.2% of annual covered payroll. The District had eight 

participating retirees who contributed $16,937.  

  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies—Post-employment expenditures are 

made from the post-employment account, which is maintained on the accrual basis 

of accounting. Expenditures are paid as they come due. 

The District’s Board has agreed to set aside funds on an annual basis equivalent to 

the annual ARC requirement as determined by the District’s actuarial consultants. As 

of June 30, 2016, the District set aside $1,451,685. These funds are to be used to meet 

the District’s future post-employment obligation.  

  Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation—The District‘s annual OPEB cost 

(expense) is calculated based on the ARC of the employer, an amount actuarially 

determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC 

represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover 

normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding 

excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. 
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The following table shows the components of the District’s annual OPEB cost for the 

year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the District’s net 

OPEB obligation for the healthcare benefits: 

Annual Required Contribution $ 261,500 

Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 48,500 

Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution (47,300) 

Annual OPEB Cost (Expense) 262,700 

Contributions Made (189,900) 

Increase (Decrease) in Net OPEB Obligation 72,800 

Net OPEB Obligation, Beginning of Year 1,213,500 

NET OPEB Obligation, End of Year $ 1,286,300 

The District’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to 

the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for the years ended June 30, 2009 through 2016 

were as follows: 

For the 
Years Ended 

June 30 

Annual 
OPEB 
Cost 

Percentage of 
Annual OPEB Cost 

Contributed 

Net 
OPEB 

Obligation 

2009 $ 212,000 0.0% $ 212,000 

2010 221,400 3.5% 425,700 

2011 200,600 9.3% 607,700 

2012 212,100 7.6% 803,700 

2013      244,200 28.0%  979,600 

2014 255,800 38.7%     1,136,400 

2015      255,200 69.8%     1,213,500 

2016      262,700 72.3%     1,286,300 

  Funded Status and Funding Progress—As of July 1, 2015, the most recent actuarial 

valuation date, the plan was not funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits 

and, thus, the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) was $2,737,100. The 

covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was 

$7,745,000 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 35.3%. Actuarial 

valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts 

and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. 

Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and healthcare 

trends. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual 

required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual 

results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the 

future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary 

information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear 
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trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or 

decreasing over time, relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. 

  Actuarial Methods and Assumptions—Projections of benefits for financial reporting 

purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer 

and the plan members) and includes the types of benefits provided at the time of 

each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the 

employer and plan members at that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions 

used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term 

volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value assets, consistent 

with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 

In the July 1, 2015 actuarial valuation, the entry age normal actuarial cost method 

was used. The actuarial assumptions included a 4.0% investment rate of return (net 

of administrative expenses), which is the expected long-term investment returns on 

the employer’s own investments calculated based on the funded level of the plan at 

the valuation date, and an annual medical cost trend increase of 8.0% to 5.0% 

annually. The investment rate included a 3.0% inflation assumption. The UAAL is 

being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The 

remaining amortization period at July 1, 2015 was 30 years. 

Note 8—Risk Management 
The District has established a self-insured group health and dental insurance program, which 

provides medical coverage up to a maximum of $70,000 per employee, and approximately 

$2,500,000 in the aggregate. The District purchases commercial insurance for claims in excess of 

coverage. 

All employees participate in the program and are responsible for premium and co-payment 

amounts as determined by the District. Charges to the Enterprise Fund are adjusted annually so 

that the program revenues and expenses are approximately equal and there is an adequate 

amount in reserves in the event the District decides to discontinue the plan. The accrued self-

insurance claims liability of $413,605 reported at June 30, 2016 represents estimated claims 

liabilities, including incurred but not reported losses, at the estimated ultimate cost of settling 

the claims using historical experience as determined by the Third-Party Administrator (TPA). 

 



Metropolitan Sewerage District of Buncombe County, North Carolina Page | 61 

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT-FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2016 

Changes since inception in the claims liability amount are as follows: 

 
Fiscal Years 

Ended 
June 30 

 
Beginning of 
Fiscal Year 

Liability 

Current Year 
Claims & 

Changes in 
Estimates 

 
 
 

Claim Payments 

 
 

Balances at 
Fiscal Year End 

1995 $          72,152 $           530,786 $       540,818 $         62,120 

1996 62,120 775,891 702,688 135,323 

1997 135,323 381,338 433,163 83,498 

1998 83,498 304,519 352,603 35,414 

1999 35,414 484,512 451,556 68,370 

2000  68,370  635,222  659,136  44,456 

2001 44,456 610,882 577,655 77,683 

2002 77,683 543,810 495,395 126,098 

2003 126,098 783,630 818,228 91,500 

2004 91,500 772,527 742,557 121,470 

2005 121,470 1,030,787 1,036,715 115,542 

2006 115,542 1,134,973 1,084,686 165,829 

2007 165,829 1,092,881 1,147,691 111,019 

2008 111,019 1,129,645 1,126,860 113,804 

2009 113,804 1,217,628 1,278,376 53,056 

2010 53,056 1,378,101 1,320,028 111,129 

2011 111,129 1,622,029 1,596,723 136,435 

2012 136,435 1,739,643 1,793,599 
 

82,479 

2013 82,479 1,582,293 1,520,749 144,023 

2014 144,023 1,676,380 1,718,637 101,766 

2015 101,766 2,231,754 1,919,915 413,605 

2016 413,605 2,544,005 2,698,818 258,792 

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 

destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The 

District participates in two self-funded risk-financing pools administered by the North Carolina 

League of Municipalities. Through these pools, the District obtains general liability and auto 

liability coverage, property coverage up to the total insurance values of the property policy, and 

workers’ compensation coverage up to statutory limits. The pools are reinsured through 

commercial companies for single occurrence claims against general liability, auto liability, and 

property in excess of $500,000 and $300,000 up to statutory limits for workers’ compensation. 

The property liability pool has an aggregate limit for the total property losses in a single year, 

with the reinsurance limit based upon a percentage of the total insurance values. 

The District carries commercial coverage for all other risks of loss. There have been no 

significant reductions in insurance coverage in the prior year, and settled claims have not  
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exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

The District carries flood insurance through the National Flood Insurance Plan (NFIP). Because 

the District’s structures, situated adjacent to the French Broad River, are in an “A” area 

designated by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), the District has purchased 

coverage in the maximum amount of $500,000 through the NFIP for each eligible structure. 

Management believes this will be adequate to remediate flood damage to exposed buildings and 

their contents. 

In accordance with G.S. 159-29, the District has adopted a system of blanket faithful 

performance bonds for all employees and has purchased coverage of $100,000 from a 

commercial insurance carrier. The Finance Officer is individually bonded for $250,000. 

Note 9—Construction in Progress and Future Expansion Plans 
During the year ended June 30, 2002, consulting engineers finalized a comprehensive twenty-

year Wastewater System Master Plan to guide the District in reducing sanitary sewer overflows 

(SSOs) as well as keeping up with the maintenance and management of its infrastructure. The 

plan estimated that the District would need to spend approximately $257 million over a twenty-

year period. Portions of this Master Plan are periodically updated as required to meet the needs 

identified by engineering staff for the Water Reclamation Facility and the collector and 

interceptor sewer lines. The District uses these plans, along with other resources including 

representatives from the member agencies, to develop a ten-year Capital Improvement Plan 

projected to spend an average of $21.1 million annually. The District expects to fund these costs 

out of user charges along with the issuance of additional bonds.  

As of June 30, 2016, the District had begun sewer projects expected to incur future costs of 

approximately $50.9 million, and the District is committed under various contracts encumbered 

for sewer construction and rehabilitation estimated to cost $1 million to complete. The majority 

of encumbered contracts are expected to be completed within the next fiscal year, and the 

projects currently under construction are scheduled to be completed within the next two to five 

years. 

Note 10—Bond Covenants 
The District is subject to the 1999 Amended Bond Order, which contains several operational 

directives including internal accounting fund structure, disclosure of financial records, and 

setting rates. The District was in compliance with all requirements of the Bond Order during the 

year ended June 30, 2016. A copy of the Bond Order may be obtained by contacting the Director 

of Finance. 
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The District is required by the 1999 Amended Bond Order to set rates as summarized by the 

following: 

The District covenants to set rates and charges so that the Income Available for Debt Service 

(defined as the excess of “Revenues” over “Current Expenses”) will not be less than the 

greater of (i) one hundred twenty percent (120%) of the Long-Term Debt Service Requirement 

for Parity Indebtedness only for such Fiscal Year and (ii) one hundred percent (100%) of the 

Long-Term Debt Service Requirement for Parity Indebtedness and Subordinated Indebtedness 

for such Fiscal Year. 

The definition of revenues for this purpose does not include grants, contributions, investment 

income credited to non-operating funds, or tap and connection fees. However, tap and 

connection fees may be considered revenues upon a resolution duly passed by the Board. 

Current expenditures include operating expenses other than additions to reserve funds, 

depreciation or amortization, or debt service payments. Long-Term Debt Service Requirement 

means the aggregate of the required deposits to be made in respect of principal and interest.  

The various Bond Series Resolutions require either monthly or semi-annual deposits of the 

upcoming principal and interest payments to be received by the Trustee at least one day prior to 

the payment date. In other words, during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, the Long-Term 

Debt Service Requirement equaled principal and interest due on January 1, 2016 and July 1, 2016. 

The District does not currently have any subordinated indebtedness, so the computation of the 

current fiscal year’s compliance with this covenant is based solely on 120% of the debt service 

requirement as follows: 

Operating Revenues $ 40,769,084 

Interest and Non-Operating Revenues 130,607 
  Adjustments to Revenues:  

Interest Income allocable to Non-Operating Funds (88,821) 

Facility, Tap, and Other Fees (6,388,299) 

Loss on Disposal of Property   106,997 

Adjusted Revenues  34,529,568 
  Operating Expenses (24,537,074) 

Adjustments to Expenses:  

   Pension plan contribution net (553,176) 

   Trustee and liquidity expense capitalized  (135,445) 

   Add back Depreciation  9,332,957 

Adjusted Operating Expenses   (15,892,738) 
  Income Available for Debt Service $ 18,636,830 
  Long-Term Debt Service Requirement 9,003,519 

Minimum Required Percentage  120% 

Minimum Required Income $ 10,804,223 
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Therefore, the District is in compliance with the rate covenant as income available for debt 

service is in excess of 120% of the annual required debt service. The actual coverage ratio is 

207%. 

Note 11—Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 

 
 

Deferred  
Outflows of 
Resources 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

Unamortized bond refunding charges $ 2,181,481 $ - 

Accumulated decrease in fair value of hedging derivative 5,745,720 - 

Pensions – difference between expected and actual experience - 132,552 

Pensions – net difference between projected and actual investment 
earnings 

 
- 160,545 

Pensions – changes in proportion and difference between employer 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 

 
76,109 

 
- 

Contributions to pension plan in 2015-2016 fiscal year  553,176  - 

Total $ 8,556,486 $ 293,097 

Note 12—Hydroelectric Power 
The District operates a hydroelectric generation facility on the French Broad River in proximity 

to the wastewater treatment plant. In some years with above average rainfall, sufficient 

quantities of electricity are produced to supply all of the plant’s needs with excess electricity 

generated being sold to Duke Energy Progress. During the year ended June 30, 2016, the District 

generated power used by the plant, which was estimated to have a net cost after deducting 

expenditures to generate such power of approximately $521,000 if purchased. This is 

considerably lower than in prior years due to rainfall that was significantly below average levels. 

Note 13—Operating Leases 
A. Rental Income 

The District has entered into a cancelable agreement expiring in 2019 with two options – 

three-year renewal, with Pace Analytical Services Inc. (Pace) which leases a portion of a 

building in the Wastewater Treatment Plant facilities along with laboratory equipment. 

In lieu of direct cash payments to the District for rent, Pace performs certain water 

sampling and analytical services required under the terms and conditions of the 

District’s NPDES Permit and its Industrial Waste Pretreatment Program. In the event that 

the fair market value of services rendered is less than the rent payment, Pace will remit 

funds for the deficit to the District. Conversely, if the fair market value of the laboratory 

services rendered exceeds the rental amount, the District will pay Pace for the 
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difference. This agreement had an annual value of $67,800, and this amount is 

accordingly reflected as rental income and operating expense in these financial 

statements. 

The District has also entered in to a cancelable lease expiring in 2016 with two options – 

three-year renewals, with Buncombe County Partnership for Children to lease the old 

Administration Building at an annual rent of $52,182. In 2016, Buncombe County 

Partnership for Children informed the District of exercising their first option beginning 

September 1, 2016 at an annual rent of $53,632. 

The final cancelable, renewable agreement entered into by the District is with a private 

company to lease land upon which the private company has placed a cell tower. The 

lease may be renewed indefinitely for five-year terms with 15% increases upon each 

renewal, and will provide $21,901 annually until the next scheduled increase in 2021. 

Following are the carrying values of leased assets, along with current year depreciation 

and total accumulated depreciation at June 30, 2016. The value of the land leased for a 

cell tower is not included as it is immaterial and not otherwise useful to the District in 

current operations. 

Leased Asset Cost Book Value 
Accumulated 
Depreciation 

Portion of Plant Building (estimate)
 $ 426,000 $ 288,524 $ 137,476 

Laboratory Equipment 14,251 - 14,251 

Old Administration Building 467,008 155,612 311,396 

Office Equipment & Fixtures 16,742 - 16,742 

  Lease Expense—The District leases certain office equipment under operating leases. 

Lease expenditures for these and other rental agreements during the year ended June 

30, 2016 totaled $31,070. 

Future minimum lease payments are as follows: 

Year Ending 
June 30 

Amount 

2017 $ 32,241 

2018  32,241 

2019 31,942 

2020                          28,653 

Total $ 125,077 
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Note 14—Claims and Judgments 
The District may be a party to lawsuits arising from the ordinary conduct of business. In the 

opinion of management, settlement of actual or possible litigation, if any, will not have a 

material effect on the financial position of the District. 

Note 15—Subsequent Events 
On May 13, 2013, House Bill 488, Session Law 2013-50, also known as House Bill 488, (“H 488”) 

became law in North Carolina, having been adopted by both houses of the North Carolina 

General Assembly, duly ratified, and not vetoed by the Governor of the State of North Carolina. 

On August 23, 2013, the General Assembly enacted Session Law 2013-388 which Amended House 

Bill 488. The two session laws are referred to collectively herein as "H 488" or the "Water System 

Act”. 

Section 1 of H 488 provides, in part, for the transfer by operation of law to the District of all 

assets and outstanding debts of the Cane Creek Water and Sewer District in Henderson 

County, North Carolina and the water system (the “Asheville Water System”) operated by the 

City of Asheville, North Carolina (“Asheville”). Section 1 of H 488 provides that, after transfer to 

the District of the assets and liabilities of the Cane Creek and Sewer District and the Asheville 

Water System, all of the assets and outstanding debt of the District are by operation of law 

transferred to, and will be operated as, a new Metropolitan Water and Sewerage District, which 

also is established by operation of law pursuant to Section 1 of H 488. The effective date of H 

488 was May 15, 2013. 

On May 14, 2013, Asheville brought an action in the Superior Court Division of the General Court 

of Justice, Wake County, North Carolina (the “Court”) challenging the constitutionality of 

Section 1 of H 488 under the Constitution of the State of North Carolina and the Constitution of 

the United States, seeking the entry of a temporary restraining order and requesting a hearing 

on a motion for a preliminary injunction. The State of North Carolina and the District were 

named as defendants in this action. 

On May 14, 2013, after a hearing, the Court issued a temporary restraining order, until further 

order of the Court or the expiration of 10 days, which temporary restraining order restrained 

and enjoined the State of North Carolina from taking any action to implement or enforce 

Section 1 of H 488, prohibited the District from assuming any authority or control over the 

Asheville Water System, and permitted Asheville to continue to own, manage and operate the 

Asheville Water System pending further order of the Court. The District did not oppose the entry 

of the temporary restraining order. A hearing on Asheville’s motion for a preliminary injunction 

was scheduled by the Court for May 20, 2013.  
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The parties agreed, on May 21, 2013, to extend the temporary restraining order through October 

4, 2013, to allow the parties sufficient time to file responsive pleadings, prepare briefs, and 

participate in oral argument in Wake County Superior Court on September 6, 2013. Oral 

argument was held in Wake County Superior Court on September 6, 2013, the Honorable 

Howard Manning, presiding. Judge Manning considered a Motion to Dismiss filed by the State of 

North Carolina and the City of Asheville’s Motion for Preliminary Injunction pending the 

outcome of the litigation. Judge Manning made no decision following the hearing. 

Following the hearing, at the request of Judge Manning, the parties entered into a Stipulated 

Case Management Order (the "Case Management Order"). The Case Management Order 

continued the temporary restraining order in effect; allowed the parties 120 days from 

September 30, 2013 to conduct any necessary discovery; provided for the filing of dispositive 

motions within thirty days after the close of discovery (or sooner by agreement of the parties) 

and the scheduling of a single hearing date for all dispositive motions.   

Oral argument took place on May 23, 2014 in Wake County Superior Court before Judge 

Manning. On June 9, 2014, Judge Manning issued a Memorandum of Decision and Order RE: 

Summary Judgment. In the Decision, Judge Manning ruled that H 488 violated Article II, Section 

24 of the North Carolina Constitution (prohibiting local acts relating to health and sanitation), 

Article I, Section 19 of the N.C. Constitution (prohibiting the taking of a proprietary asset with 

no rational basis), and Article I, Sections 19 and 35 of the N.C. Constitution (because the taking 

resulted in no change in use and was not a valid exercise of the legislative power to condemn). 

Judge Manning ruled  further, if it were determined that H 488 was a valid exercise of the 

sovereign power of the State of North Carolina, then the City of Asheville would be entitled to 

just compensation for its water system.  

The State of North Carolina filed Notice of Appeal from Judge Manning's Memorandum of 

Decision and Order RE: Summary Judgment to the North Carolina Court of Appeals (“Court of 

Appeals”) on July 8, 2014. The State and the City of Asheville submitted a Record on Appeal and 

briefs. With the permission of the Court of Appeals, Amicus Curae briefs, in support of the City of 

Asheville's position, were filed by the City of Wilson, North Carolina and the North Carolina 

League of Municipalities.  

The Court of Appeals heard oral argument on June 3, 2015 in Raleigh. The Court of Appeals 

issued a decision on October 6, 2015. In its decision, the Court of Appeals reversed the trial court 

and found that H488 is constitutional. The case was remanded to the trial court for further 

proceedings consistent with the Court of Appeals' decision.1    

The City of Asheville appealed the Court of Appeals decision to the North Carolina Supreme 

Court. The City and the State filed briefs in support of their respective positions. The Supreme 
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Court heard oral argument in the case on May 17, 2016. A decision by the Supreme Court is 

expected sometime in 2016.  

 
 See City of Asheville v. State of North Carolina and the Metropolitan Sewerage District of Buncombe County, North Carolina 
No. COA14-1255, Filed: 6 October 2015. 



 

 

Required 
Supplemental 
Information
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Other Post-Employment Benefits 
Required Supplement Information 
Schedule of Funding Progress 

Actuarial 
Valuation 

Date 

Actuarial 
Value of 
Assets 

(a) 

Actuarial 
Accrued 
Liability 

Entry Age 
(b) 

Unfunded 
AAL (UAAL) 

(b-a) 

Funded 
Ratio 
(a/b) 

Covered 
Payroll 

(c) 

% of 
Covered 
Payroll 
((b-a)/c) 

7/1/2008 $ -  $ 1,801,000  $ 1,801,000 0.0%  $ 6,532,000 27.6% 

7/1/2010 -    1,678,300    1,678,300 0.0% 7,147,000 23.5% 

7/1/2012 - 2,403,700 2,403,700 0.0% 7,407,000 32.5% 

7/1/2014 -    2,737,100    2,737,100 0.0% 7,745,000 35.3% 
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• 7/1/2014 

Valuation Date 

•Entry Age Normal 

Actuarial Cost Method 

•Level percentage of pay, open 

Amortization Method 

•30 Years 

Remaining Amortization Period 

• Investment Rate of Return  - 4.00% 
• Inflation Assumption  - 3.00% 
• Healthcare Cost Trend Rate - 8.00% initial, 5.00% ultimate 

Actuarial Assumptions 

Other Post-Employment Benefits 
Required Supplement Information 
Employer Contribution and Notes to the Required Schedules 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Notes to the Required Schedules     

This information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of 

the actuarial valuations at the dates indicated. 

Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows: 

 

Year Ended 
June 30, 

Annual 
Required Contribution 

Percentage 
Contributed 

2009 $  212,000 0.0% 

2010 221,500 3.5% 

2011 200,200 9.3% 

2012 211,500 7.6% 

2013 243,400 28.0% 

2014 254,800 38.7% 

2015 254,000 69.8% 

2016 262,700 72.3% 
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Local Government Employees’ Retirement System 
Required Supplement Information 
Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share 
Of the Net Position Liability (Asset) 
Last Three Fiscal Years* 

 
2016 2015 2014 

District's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) % 0.126% 0.125% 0.126% 

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
(asset) $ $563,911 $ (734,825) $ 1,517,578  

District's covered-employee payroll $8,043,516 $ 7,906,515  $ 7,768,717  

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
(asset) as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll 

7.01% (9.29%) 19.53% 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 
pension liability 

98.09% 102.64% 94.35% 

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the prior fiscal year ending June 30. 
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Local Government Employees’ Retirement System 
Required Supplement Information 
Schedule of County Contributions 
Last Three Fiscal Years* 

 
2016 2015 2014 

Contractually required contribution $ 553,176 $ 564,473 $ 555,232 

Contributions in relation to the contractually required 
contribution 

 553,176         564,473         555,232 

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ - 

    

District's covered-employee payroll $ 8,383,296 $ 8,043,516 $ 7,906,515 

    

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 6.60% 7.02% 7.02% 

 

 
 
 



 

 

Supplemental 
Financial 

Data
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2016 2015

Assets:

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 27,169,542$         20,759,899$        

Investments 15,500,938          24,986,163          

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 6,589,803           7,539,492           

Receivables (net):   

Accounts 5,659,688           6,010,614            

Sales 358,278              325,908             

Employee 20,002              20,897               

Interest 18,549                425,144              

Inventories 339,409              342,054             

Prepaid expenses 122,442              98,798                

Total current assets 55,778,651 60,508,969

Noncurrent assets:

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 956,806             948,386              

Net pension assets -                    734,825              

Capital Assets:

Land 2,515,666            2,515,666            

Easements 8,828,919            8,278,294           

Plant and equipment 551,515,216          531,393,048        

Construction in progress 4,350,902           8,550,739           

Less:  accumulated depreciation (159,305,199)        (156,082,784)       

Total property and equipment 407,905,504       394,654,963        

Total noncurrent assets 408,862,310        396,338,174         

Total assets 464,640,961        456,847,143         

Deferred outflows of resources: 8,556,486 7,568,857

Liabilities and Net Position:

Current liabilities:

  Payments from current assets:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 2,615,588            3,330,959           

Current portion of compensated absences payable 32,000              32,000              

  Payments from restricted cash and cash equivalents:

Bond interest payable 1,458,960            1,557,592            

Current portion of long term debt 5,275,825           6,135,825            

Total current liabilities 9,382,373           11,056,376           

Noncurrent liabilities:

Compensated absences, net of current portion 799,867              775,244              

Other post-employment benefit 1,286,300           1,213,500            

Net pension liability 563,911                

Derivative liability 5,745,720           4,547,626           

Bonds payable, net of current maturities 94,533,195          100,608,051        

Total noncurrent liabilities 102,928,993        107,144,421          

Total liabilities 112,311,366           118,200,797         

Deferred inflows of resources: 293,097              1,790,947            

Net position:

Net investment in capital assets 310,277,965        290,329,700       

Restricted for:

   Debt service 5,130,843            5,981,900           

   Bond covenant 956,806             948,386              

Unrestricted 44,227,370         47,164,270          

Total net position 360,592,984$      344,424,256$      

Comparative Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2016 and 2015 
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Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and 
Changes in Net Position 
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 

 

2016 2015
Operating revenues:

Sewer charges 33,679,560$       32,617,886$        

Facility and tap fees 6,324,596           4,311,259            

Miscellaneous 764,928             757,619              

Total operating revenues 40,769,084        37,686,764         

Operating expenses:

Salaries and employee benefits 7,183,043           6,758,251           

Contractual services 1,472,795            1,398,288           

Utilities 1,058,299           1,144,711              

Repairs and maintenance 998,758             938,977              

Other supplies and expenses 1,500,249           1,545,531            

Insurance claims and expenses 2,990,973           2,682,426           

Depreciation 9,332,957           8,543,402          

Total operating expenses 24,537,074        23,011,586          

Operating income 16,232,010          14,675,178          

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Investment income 237,604             209,220             

Interest expense (2,586,670)         (2,771,525)           

Gain (Loss) on disposal of surplus property (106,997)             17,258                

Total nonoperating expenses (2,456,063)         (2,545,047)         

Income before contributions 13,775,947          12,130,131            

Capital contribution 2,392,781            3,078,520          

  

 Change in net position 16,168,728           15,208,651          

  

Total net position, beginning of year 344,424,256       329,215,605        

Total net position, end of year 360,592,984$     344,424,256$     
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Variance

Amended Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues:

Operating revenues:

 Sewer charges (net):  

Domestic  users 28,962,278$     29,719,715$      757,437$         

Industrial users 3,155,799         3,344,074       188,275           

Billings and collections 734,708          754,316           19,608            

32,852,785      33,818,104        965,319           

Facility and tap fees 1,605,000       6,324,596        4,719,596         

City of Asheville(Enka Bonds) 37,000           37,146             146                 

Rental Income 69,950            78,925            8,975              

Miscellaneous 464,000         648,857          184,857           

Total operating revenues 35,028,735      40,907,628      5,878,893        

 Nonoperating revenues:

Investment income 434,094          237,604          (196,490)          

Total nonoperating revenues 434,094          237,604          (196,490)          

Total revenues 35,462,829      41,145,232        5,682,403        

Expenses:

 Operating expenses:

Salaries and employee benefits 7,253,882        

Contractual services 1,472,795         

Utilities 1,058,299        

Repairs and maintenance 998,758          

Other supplies and expenses 1,500,249        

Insurance claims and expenses 3,145,786         

Total operating expenses 15,771,627        15,429,769       341,858           

Capital Projects:

Equipment 465,961           

Infrastructure 19,259,020      

Total capital projects 22,629,708      19,724,981        2,904,727        

Debt service

Principal 5,275,825        

Interest 3,799,727        

Total debt service 9,109,708        9,075,552       34,156             

Total Expenses 47,511,043       44,230,302      3,280,741        

Revenues over (under) expenses (12,048,214)      (3,085,070)      8,963,144         

Other Financing Sources:

Use of available funds 12,048,214       -                    (12,048,214)      

12,048,214       -                    (12,048,214)      

Revenues and other financing sources over

(under) expenditures and other financing

uses -$                  (3,085,070)$    (3,085,070)$    

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures 
Budget to Actual (Non-GAAP) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 
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Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures 
Budget to Actual (Non-GAAP) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 (continued) 

 

 

 

 

 

Actual

Reconciliation from budgetary basis

(modified accrual) to full accrual:

Revenues and other financing sources over

(under) expenditures and other financing

uses (3,085,070)$    

Reconciling items:

Interest expense capitalized 552,526          

Change in accrued interest expense 98,632            

Unamortized discount recognized in interest expense 561,899           

Debt principal payments 5,275,825        

Capital project transfers 19,597,554       

Change in allowance for doubtful accounts (138,544)          

Change in compensated absences (24,623)           

Change in health insurance IBNR 154,813            

Change in other post-employment insurance OPEB (72,800)          

Deferred outflows of resources for contributions made

  to pension plan in current Fiscal year 553,176           

Pension expense (257,487)         

Contributed assets 2,392,781         

Depreciation (9,332,957)       

Gain (loss) on disposal of surplus property (106,997)           

Total reconciling items 19,253,798       

Change in net position 16,168,728$       
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Capital

Enterprise Reserve

Acccount Account

Assets:

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 19,859,032$     $               -

Investments 11,330,099       

Restricted cash and cash equivalents -                    -                    

Receivables (net):

Accounts 5,659,688        -                    

Sales Tax 213,228           -                    

Employee 20,002           -                    

Interest -                    -                    

Inventories 339,409          -                    

Prepaid expenses 122,442           -                    

Total current assets 37,543,900      -                    

Noncurrent assets:

Restricted cash and cash equivalents -                    956,806          

Capital assets:

Land -                    -                    

Easements -                    -                    

Plant and equipment -                    -                    

Construction in progress -                    -                    

Less accumulated depreciation -                    -                    

Total property and equipment -                    -                    

Total noncurrent assets -                    956,806          

                 Total assets 37,543,900      956,806          

Deferred outflow of resources: 481,019 -                    

Liabilities

Current liabilities:

 Payments from current assets:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,225,842         -                    

Current portion of compensated absences payable 32,000           -                    

 Payments from restricted cash and cash equivalents:

Bond interest payable -                    -                    

Current portion of long-term obligation -                    -                    

Total current liabilities 1,257,842         -                    

Noncurrent liabilities:

Compensated absences, net of current portion 799,867          -                    

Other post-employment benefits 1,286,300        -                    

Net pension liability 429,769          

Derivative liability -                    -                    

Deferred Revenue -                    -                    

Long-term obligations, net of current maturities -                    -                    

Total noncurrent liabilities 2,515,936         -                    

Total liabilities 3,773,778        -                    

Deferred inflows of resources 213,345           -                    

Net position 34,037,796$    956,806$        

Combining Schedule of Net Position, All Funds (Non-GAAP) 
Ended June 30, 2016 
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Combining Schedule of Net Position, All Funds (Non-GAAP) 
Ended June 30, 2016 (continued) 

 

Bond 

Service Construction General Capital 

Account Account Account Account Total

$                 - 949,289$         5,999,882$      361,339           27,169,542$     

541,594           3,423,091        206,154           15,500,938      

6,589,803        -                    -                    -                    6,589,803        

 

-                    -                    -                     5,659,688        

-                    138,762           -                    6,288              358,278          

-                    -                    -                    -                    20,002           

-                    -                    18,549             -                    18,549             

-                    -                    -                    -                    339,409          

-                    -                    -                    -                    122,442           

6,589,803        1,629,645         9,441,522         573,781           55,778,651       

-                    -                    -                    -                    956,806          

-                    -                    -                    2,515,666         2,515,666         

-                    -                    -                    8,828,919         8,828,919         

-                    -                    -                    551,515,216       551,515,216       

-                    -                    -                    4,350,902       4,350,902       

-                    -                    -                    (159,305,199)     (159,305,199)     

-                    -                    -                    407,905,504   407,905,504   

-                    -                    -                    407,905,504   408,862,310     

6,589,803        1,629,645         9,441,522         408,479,285    464,640,961     

-                    148,266           -                    7,927,201 8,556,486

-                    1,276,988         1,830              110,928            2,615,588         

-                    -                    -                    -                    32,000           

1,458,960        -                    -                    -                    1,458,960        

-                    -                    -                    5,275,825        5,275,825        

1,458,960        1,276,988         1,830              5,386,753        9,382,373        

-                    -                    -                    -                    799,867          

-                    -                    -                    -                    1,286,300        

134,142            563,911            

-                    -                    -                    5,745,720       5,745,720       

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

-                    -                    -                    94,533,195       94,533,195       

-                    134,142            -                    100,278,915      102,928,993     

1,458,960        1,411,130           1,830              105,665,668     112,311,366        

-                    79,752            -                    -                    293,097          

5,130,843$       287,029$        9,439,692$      310,740,818$    360,592,984$   
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 Capital

Enterprise Reserve

Account Account

Operating revenues:

Sewer charges (refunds) 33,679,560$          -$                         

Facility and tap fees -                           -                           

Miscellaneous 701,225                 -                           

Total operating revenues 34,380,785            -                           

Operating expenses:

Operations 15,087,122              -                           

Depreciation -                           -                           

Total operating expenses 15,087,122              -                           

Operating income (loss) 19,293,663             -                           

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Investment income 148,783                  8,420                    

Interest expense -                           -                           

Less capitalized interest -                           -                           

Bond issuance costs -                           -                           

Gain (Loss) on disposal of surplus property 22,224                  -                           

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 171,007                  8,420                    

Income (loss) before other transactions 19,464,670             8,420                    

Capital contribution -                           -                           

Operating transfers (12,869,370)            -                           

Purchase of and transfer capital assets (465,961)                -                           

Payment of debt:

Principal -                           -                           

 Change in net position 6,129,339               8,420                    

Total net position, beginning of year 27,908,457            948,386                 

Total net position, end of year 34,037,796$          956,806$              

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and  
Changes in Net Position, All Funds (Non-GAAP) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 
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Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and  
Changes in Net Position, All Funds (Non-GAAP) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 (continued) 

 

Bond 

Service Construction General Capital 

Account Account Account Account Total

-$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         33,679,560$          

-                           -                           6,324,596              -                           6,324,596              

-                           -                           63,703                  -                           764,928                 

-                           -                           6,388,299              -                           40,769,084            

-                           59,593                   -                           57,402                  15,204,117              

-                           -                           -                           9,332,957              9,332,957              

-                           59,593                   -                           9,390,359              24,537,074            

-                           (59,593)                  6,388,299              (9,390,359)             16,232,010             

542                       30,049                  47,402                  2,408                    237,604                

(3,139,196)               -                           -                           -                           (3,139,196)               

552,526                 -                           -                           -                           552,526                 

-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

-                           -                           -                           (129,221)                 (106,997)                

(2,586,128)              30,049                  47,402                  (126,813)                 (2,456,063)             

(2,586,128)              (29,544)                 6,435,701               (9,517,172)               13,775,947             

-                           -                           2,392,781               -                           2,392,781               

8,423,422              8,196,278               (4,512,229)              761,899                 -                           

(552,526)                (19,201,501)             (2,392,781)              22,612,769             -                           

(6,135,825)              -                           -                           6,135,825               -                           

(851,057)                (11,034,767)             1,923,472               19,993,321              16,168,728              

5,981,900              11,321,796               7,516,220               290,747,497          344,424,256           

5,130,843$             287,029$              9,439,692$            310,740,818$          360,592,984$        
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Introduction 
This part of MSD’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a 

context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, 

and required supplementary information says about the District’s overall financial health. 

Financial Trends 
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the District’s 

financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 
 

 Net Position by Component 
 Changes in Net Position 
 General Revenue by Source 
 Expenses by Function 

Revenue Capacity 
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the District’s most significant 

revenue sources. 
 

 Sewer Charge Revenue by Customer Type 
 Residential Sewer Rates 
 Principal Commercial Users 

Debt Capacity 
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the District’s 

current levels of outstanding debt and the District’s ability to issue additional debt in the future. 
 

 Ratio of Outstanding Debt 
 Revenue Bond Coverage 

Demographic and Economic Information 
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the 

environment within which the District’s financial activities take place. 
 

 Demographic & Economic Statistics 
 Personal Income by Industry 
 Principal Employers 
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Operating Information 
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the 

information in the District’s financial report relates to the services the District provides and the 

activities it performs. 
 

 Employees by Division 
 Operating Indicators by Division 

 
 
 
 
Source: Unless otherwise noted, the information in theses schedules is derived from the comprehensive 

annual financial reports for the relevant year. 
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Fiscal 

Year 

Ended 

June 30

 Net Invested in 

Capital Assets 
Restricted Unrestricted

 Total                 

Net Position 

2007 214,808,683         9,447,494            36,699,672           260,955,849        

2008 231,678,011           8,886,108             33,968,233           274,532,352         

2009 244,875,790        9,493,497             30,570,139           284,939,426         

2010 235,471,938          9,248,713             45,195,178            289,915,829          

2011 251,754,578          9,294,955            38,170,812            299,220,345         

2012 270,297,021         8,117,494              28,687,702          307,102,217          

2013 289,369,009        5,472,550            23,332,868           318,174,427           

2014 273,702,824         6,238,648             50,388,726          330,330,198          

2015 290,329,700        6,930,286            47,164,270           344,424,256         

2016 310,277,965         6,087,649            44,227,370          360,592,984         

Net Position by Component FY 2007 to FY 2016 
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Changes in Net Position (Accrual Basis of Accounting) FY 2007 to FY 2016 
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COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT-FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

General Revenues by Source FY 2007 to FY 2016 

 
 
Note: Does not include Capital Contributions 
 

 

Fiscal 

Year 

Ended    

June 30

Industrial 

Sewer Charges

Domestic 

Sewer Charges

Facility & Tap 

Fees
Miscellaneous Total

2007 2,693,328        22,077,774      3,054,950       3,384,897        31,210,949        

2008 1,510,669         23,385,025      3,005,184        2,444,885        30,345,763      

2009 1,386,132          22,904,587      2,959,115          1,578,976         28,828,810       

2010 1,498,529         23,871,289       1,654,010         1,348,691          28,372,519       

2011 1,565,402        25,329,492      2,238,171          1,147,955          30,281,020      

2012 1,599,819          26,249,357      2,321,474         1,305,959         31,476,609       

2013 1,577,916          26,690,934      2,566,635        1,185,057         32,020,542      

2014 1,758,818          28,528,622      4,430,475        972,397           35,690,312       

2015 3,725,584        28,978,958      4,311,259          984,097          37,999,898      

2016 3,344,074        30,335,486      6,324,596        895,535           40,899,691       
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COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT-FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Expenses by Function (Non-GAAP) FY 2007 to FY 2016 

 

 
1 Includes general operations 
2 Excludes depreciation expense          
3 This includes collection system infrastructure contributed by developers 
4 Includes Bond Principal Expense and Bond Interest Less Capitalized Interest Portion and excludes early 

retirement of long-term debt       

Fiscal    

Year      

Ended       

June 30

Operating 

Expenses 
(1)

Capital 

Improvement 
(2)

Capital 

Contributions 
(3)

Debt Service 
(4) Total

2007 11,977,241         12,574,902       8,404,343        7,650,737      40,607,223    

2008 12,070,195       12,471,794        6,244,304        8,419,405       39,205,698    

2009 12,808,349       12,447,791        5,856,798        6,413,405       37,526,343     

2010 12,754,727       9,173,231          1,128,684          7,212,980       30,269,622    

2011 13,522,468       16,226,145        2,841,859         7,255,856      39,846,328     

2012 13,982,269       17,775,391        2,047,550       7,859,771       41,664,981      

2013 13,674,518        14,988,922       3,217,846         6,553,956       38,435,242     

2014 14,081,697       12,701,810        1,396,385         6,464,583       34,644,475     

2015 14,468,184        16,455,653       3,078,520       8,154,350       42,156,707     

2016 15,204,117        19,201,501        2,392,781         8,722,495      45,520,894    
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COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT-FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Sewer Charge Revenue  FY 2007 to FY 2016 
by Customer Type 

Note: Municipalities include sewer charges on water bills. "Other" represents sewer charges billed directly by MSD to 
domestic users on wells and to septage haulers. 
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Customer Accounts by Member Agency FY 2007 to FY 2016 

Source:  Member Agencies 
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Residential Sewer Rates FY 2007 to FY 2016 

Note: Rates are based on 5/8" meter, which is the standard household meter size. The District charges a higher base rate 
for larger meters. Each municipality will set its own water rates. 

Fiscal 

Year 

Ended 

June 30

Monthly 

Base Rate

Rate Per 

1,000 Gallons

Average 

Monthly 

Billing

2007 5.05          4.39 22.41           

2008 5.25 4.56 23.28           

2009 5.41           4.69 23.99           

2010 5.61           4.87 24.84          

2011 5.81           5.04 25.72           

2012 5.98 5.19 26.45           

2013 6.13           5.32 27.14 

2014 6.28 5.45 27.81            

2015 6.44          5.59 28.49           

2016 6.60          5.72 29.15            
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Fiscal    

Year

Total 

Outstanding 

Debt 
1

Debt Per 

Capita 
2

Per Capita 

Income 
3

Percentage of 

Personal Income

2007 98,918,097 919 34,586 2.66%

2008 94,749,395           855 34,846 2.45%

2009 91,759,237 816 33,762 2.42%

2010 104,804,725 921 33,973 2.71%

2011 99,967,436 820 35,106 2.34%

2012 94,534,320           783 37,363 2.10%

2013 86,909,009 721 37,443 1.93%

2014 110,407,625 921 38,128 2.42%

2015 104,325,293          857 Unavailable -

2016 97,627,539 789 Unavailable -

Ratio of Outstanding Debt FY 2007 to FY 2016 

1 Calculations derived from the balance of outstanding debt in Note 3 less the unamortized bond 

refunding charges in Note 11 

2 This ratio was calculated by using the number of domestic accounts and multiplying by Buncombe 

County census average of 2.3 persons per household to get the number of users in the District. 
3 Regional Economic Information System, Bureau of Economic Analysis, U.S. Department of Commerce 

See Personal Income by Industry on page 95 to assess economic base of the County.
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Revenue Bond Coverage FY 2007 to FY 2016 

From 1985 to 2002, the District was subject to Section 501 of the 1985 Bond Order which 

covenants that the District will set rates to produce sufficient revenues, together with any other 

available funds, including the amounts transferred by the District from the General Fund to the 

Revenue Fund, to permit the deposit and transfer to the credit of the Revenue Fund in the then 

current fiscal year of a sum at least equal to the total of the following: 

1. the current expenses of the Sewerage System for the current fiscal year, and

2. to provide for the higher of either:

a. the amounts needed for making the required cash deposits in each fiscal year to the

credit of the several accounts in the Bond Service Fund and to the credit of the

Subordinated Indebtedness Service Fund, the Debt Service Reserve Fund and the

Maintenance Reserve Fund, or

b. one hundred twenty per centum (120%) of the amount of the principal and interest

requirements for the current fiscal year on account of the indebtedness then

outstanding excluding principal and interest requirements on account of indebtedness

incurred to finance improvements or additional improvements which have not been

completed as of the beginning of such fiscal year.

However, with the issuance of refunding bonds on April 3, 2003, a sufficient amount of debt 

subject to the 1985 bond order was defeased allowing application of the 1999 Amended Bond 

Order whose rate covenant is summarized in the following paragraph. 

The District covenants to set rates and charges so that the Income Available for Debt Service (defined as the 

excess of “Revenues” over “Current Expenses”) will not be less than the greater of (i) one hundred twenty 

percent (120%) of the Long-Term Debt Service Requirement for Parity Indebtedness only for such Fiscal Year 

and (ii) one hundred percent (100%) of the Long-Term Debt Service Requirement for Parity Indebtedness and 

Subordinated Indebtedness for such Fiscal Year. The definition of revenues for this purpose does not include 

grants, contributions, investment income credited to non-operating funds, or tap and connection fees. 

Current expenditures include operating expenses other than additions to reserve funds, depreciation or 

amortization, or debt service payments. 

The District does not currently have any subordinated indebtedness, so the computation of the 

current fiscal year’s compliance with this covenant is based solely on 120% of the debt service 

requirement. Long-Term Debt Service Requirement is defined as interest and principal required 

to be remitted to the Trustee, except that interest shall be excluded from the determination of 

Long Term Debt Service Requirement to the extent the same is provided from the proceeds of 

the Long Term Indebtedness. The coverage ratio is computed on the basis of 100% of required 

debt service. 
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Revenue Bond Coverage (continued) FY 2007 to FY 2016 

(A) Includes all operation and maintenance expenses, except depreciation. 

(B) Does not include tap and connection fees, grants, contributions, investment income allocated to 

non-operating funds. 

Fiscal 

Year 

Ended 

June 30

Adjusted 

Revenues (B)

Adjusted 

Current 

Expenses (A)

Income 

Available for 

Debt Service

Long-Term Debt 

Service 

Requirement

120% of Long-

Term Debt 

Service 

Requirement

Excess of 

Income Available 

for Debt over 

Debt Service

Coverage 

Ratio

2007 26,092,369  12,207,660   13,884,709   8,150,000 9,780,000     5,734,709     1.70

2008 26,104,746   12,301,084   13,803,662   8,192,946       9,831,535       5,610,716      1.68

2009 25,374,157   13,000,872 12,373,285 7,600,385 9,120,462 4,772,900 1.63

2010 26,268,075  13,233,881    13,034,194    7,855,989      9,427,187       5,178,205 1.66

2011 27,654,768 13,967,900   13,686,868   8,565,201      10,278,241      5,121,667       1.60

2012 28,510,573   14,398,228   14,112,345 7,274,680      8,729,616       6,837,665     1.94

2013 29,075,493  14,013,024   15,062,469   8,114,665 9,737,598      6,947,804     1.86

2014 31,096,483   14,302,479   16,794,004 8,408,166 10,089,799     8,385,838     2.00

2015 33,428,669 15,179,802    18,248,867   10,184,460     12,221,352      8,064,407    1.79

2016 34,529,568  15,892,738   18,636,830   9,003,519      10,804,223 9,633,311       2.07
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Population Per Capita Median Unemployment

Estimates 
1

Income 
2

Age 
1 Employed Unemployed Rate

2007 229,526 34,586       40.5 117,069       4,476           3.7%

2008 232,814 34,846       40.7 117,933 5,664 4.6%

2009 235,879 33,762 40.8 111,852        10,675 8.7%

2010 238,857 33,973       40.7 114,170 10,716 8.6%

2011 243,641 35,106       40.9 115,557       10,299 8.2%

2012 245,319 37,363       41.2 118,283       9,590 7.5%

2013 248,757 37,443       41.4 121,178        8,171 6.3%

2014 251,275 38,128        41.6 121,639       5,999           4.7%

2015 254,344 Unavailable 41.8 125,750      6,213 4.7%

2016 257,413 Unavailable 41.9 128,037      5,189 3.9%

Civilian Labor Force 
3

Demographic & Economic Statistics FY 2007 to FY 2016 

Note: The information above is for Buncombe County, North Carolina. The District believes that the 

above information is representative of the service area, which extends over approximately 80% of 

the county. 

Sources: 
1 North Carolina Office of State Budget and Management  
2 Regional Economic Information System, Bureau of Economic Analysis, U.S. Department of Commerce 
3 North Carolina Department of Commerce, Division of Employment Security 
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Employer Employees Rank

% of Total 

County 

Employment

Employees* Rank

% of Total 

County 

Employment

Mission Health System & Hospitals 6,000 1 5.13% 3,000+ 1 2.34%+

Buncombe County Public Schools 3,720 2 3.18% 3,000+ 2 2.34%+

Asheville-Buncombe Technicial Community College 1,000-2,999 3 0.78% - 2.34%

The Biltmore Company 1,580 5 1.35% 1,000-2,999 4 0.78% - 2.34%

Buncombe County Government 1,670 4 1.43% 1,000-2,999 5 0.78% - 2.34%

City of Asheville 1,000-2,999 6 0.78% - 2.34%

Ingles Markets, Inc. 3,050 3 2.61% 1,000-2,999 7 0.78% - 2.34%

Omni Grove Park Inn 1,100 7 0.94% 1,000-2,999 8 0.78% - 2.34%

VA Medical Center - Asheville 1,140 6 0.97% 1,000-2,999 9 0.78% - 2.34%

Eaton Corporation - Electrical Division 860 9 0.73% 705-999 10 0.59% - 0.78%

Community Care Partners 990 8 0.84%

Borgwarner Turbo & Emissions Systems 840 10 0.72%

Total for Principal Employers 20,950 17.90% 13,750 - 21,992 10.74% - 17.18%

FY 2007 FY 2016

Principal Employers FY 2007 to FY 2016 

* Employee range is the only public information available

Note: The information above is for Buncombe County, North Carolina. The District believes that the 

above information is representative of the entire service area, which extends over approximately 

80% of the County.  

Source: Asheville Area Chamber of Commerce, Economic Development Department & 

NC Employment Security Commission 
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Staffing History (FTE’s) FY 2007 to FY 2016 

 
Note: All employees are considered full time based on 2080 hours worked per year. Above numbers 

represent budgeted positions and may include vacancies at year-end.     

 

Source: District Personnel Records 

Department 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Office of the General Manager
Office Support 1 1 1 1 1

Human Resources Department
Human Resource 3 3 3 3 3

Environmental, Health & Safety 2 2 2 2 2

Information Technology Department
IT & MIS 8 5 5 5 5

Geographic Information Systems 0 4 4 4 4

Financial Services Department
Finance & Budget 2 1 1 1 1

Accounting, Investments & Cash Flow Mgmt. 3 3 3 3 3

Purchasing & Warehouse 3 3 3 3 3

Water Reclamation Facility
Office Support 0 0 0 0 0

Plant Operations 14 13 13 13 11

Industrial Waste 4 4 4 4 5

Mechanical Maintenance 8 8 8 8 8

Electrical Maintenance/Hydro 8 8 8 8 8

Fleet Maintenance 4 4 4 4 4

Structural Maintenance 5 5 5 5 6

System Services Department
Office Support 4 4 4 4 4

System Services 52 52 52 52 52

Engineering Services Department
Office Support 1 1 1 1 1

Right of Way 3 3 3 3 3

Construction Administration 5 5 5 5 5

Planning and Development 7 7 7 7 7

Design and Drafting 3 3 3 3 3

Engineers 3 3 3 3 3

Management
Division Heads 6 7 7 7 7

General Manager 1 1 1 1 1

Total 150 150 150 150 150

FISCAL YEAR
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Staffing History (FTE’s) (continued) FY 2007 to FY 2016 

Note: All employees are considered full time based on 2080 hours worked per year. Above numbers 

represent budgeted positions and may include vacancies at year-end. 

Source: District Personnel Records 

Department 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Office of the General Manager
Office Support 1 1 1 1 1

Human Resources Department
Human Resource 3 3 3 3 3

Environmental, Health & Safety 2 2 2 2 2

Information Technology Department
IT & MIS 5 5 5 5 5

Geographic Information Systems 4 4 4 4 4

Financial Services Department
Finance & Budget 1 1 1 1 1

Accounting, Investments & Cash Flow Mgmt. 3 3 4 4 4

Purchasing & Warehouse 3 3 3 3 3

Water Reclamation Facility
Office Support 0 0 0 0 1

Plant Operations 11 11 10 11 11

Industrial Waste 5 5 5 7 5

Mechanical Maintenance 8 0 0 0 0

Electrical Maintenance/Hydro 8 16 15 13 11

Fleet Maintenance 4 4 4 4 4

Structural Maintenance 6 6 6 6 6

System Services Department
Office Support 4 4 4 4 4

System Services 51 51 51 51 54

Engineering Services Department
Office Support 1 1 1 1 1

Right of Way 3 3 3 3 3

Construction Administration 5 5 5 5 5

Planning and Development 5 5 5 4 4

Design and Drafting 3 3 4 3 3

Engineers 3 3 3 4 4

Management
Division Heads 8 8 8 7 7

General Manager 1 1 1 1 1

Total 148 148 148 147 147

FISCAL YEAR



Metropolitan Sewerage District of Buncombe County, North Carolina Page | 99 

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT-FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Staffing History (FTE’s) (continued) FY 2007 to FY 2016 

Note: All employees are considered full time based on 2080 hours worked per year. Above numbers 

represent budgeted positions and may include vacancies at year-end. 

Source: District Personnel Records 
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Operating Indicators by Division FY 2007 to FY 2016 

Source: District Departmental Data

DEPARTMENT 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Capital Improvement Department

Linear Feet of rehabilitated Sewer Systems 51,272 69,249 45,175 45,450 49,099

Engineering Services Department

Sewer Tap Applications 1,339 1,145 983 1,094 925

Plans Reviewed 123 123 101 47 37

Linear Feet of Accepted Sewer Systems 129,025 78,451 77,572 10,400 52,856   

Human Resources Department

Number of workforce injuries 11 4 11 11 7

Lost Work Rate per 100 employees 3.00 2.56 3.00 7.02 4.82

System Services Department

Average Response Time to sewer problem (hours) 0.57 0.53 0.49 0.52 0.59

Lines Washed (lineal feet) - in-house only 662,245 893,206 920,525 1,019,852 584,461

Construction Repairs to Sewer Lines 542 513 528 447 486

Taps Installed 308 260 211 225 196

Manhole Repairs 406 411 458 461 404

Sanitary Sewer Overflows 52 41 23 34 24

Pump Stations 31 31 31 31 32

Water Reclamation Facility

Sanitary Sewers (approximate miles) 900 930 920 960 977

Treatment Provided (millions of gallons) 6,643.00 5,767.00 6,022.50 7,774.50 6,752.50

Daily (average) flow treated (millions of gallons daily) 18.2 15.8 16.5 21.3 18.5

Maximum daily flow treated (millions of gallons daily) 47.9 33.2 40.7 57.8 56.8

Percentage of plant capacity used 45.5% 39.5% 41.3% 53.3% 46.3%

Cost per millions of gallons treated 786$      873$      877$      675$      803$     

Energy cost per millions of gallons treated 175$       184$      180$      116$       151$       

Total suspended solids (TSS) removal efficiency (percentage 90% 92% 91% 90% 90%

Inspection of Significant Industrial Users 20 23 24 18 23

Restaurant inspections for Grease Reduction Compliance 710 995 890 846 606

FISCAL YEAR
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Operating Indicators by Division (continued) FY 2007 to FY 2016 

Source: District Departmental Data

DEPARTMENT 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Capital Improvement Department

Linear Feet of rehabilitated Sewer Systems 52,641 43,519 51,110 46,729 42,675

Engineering Services Department

Sewer Tap Applications 876 1,356      1,594      1,382      1,177       

Plans Reviewed 33 92 69 62 66

Linear Feet of Accepted Sewer Systems 25,550   44,309   18,314     29,185    43,616    

Human Resources Department

Number of workforce injuries 11 5 12 5 5

Lost Work Rate per 100 employees 5.52 3.46 7.85 3.48 3.48

System Services Department

Average Response Time to sewer problem (hours) 0.55 0.51 0.52 0.55 0.52

Lines Washed (lineal feet) - in-house only 873,077 807,746 699,543 729,451 730,000

Construction Repairs to Sewer Lines 523 507 589 543 500

Taps Installed 208 199 218 239 234

Manhole Repairs 436 342 355 376 294

Sanitary Sewer Overflows 25 37 36 37 53

Pump Stations 32 32 32 32 31

Water Reclamation Facility

Sanitary Sewers (approximate miles) 986 1,000     1,000     1,000     1,000     

Treatment Provided (millions of gallons) 6,825.50 7,993.50 8,358.50 6,971.50 7,117.50

Daily (average) flow treated (millions of gallons daily) 18.7 21.9 22.9 19.1 19.5

Maximum daily flow treated (millions of gallons daily) 50.2 62.1 74.6 39.0 67.1

Percentage of plant capacity used 46.8% 54.8% 57.3% 47.8% 48.8%

Cost per millions of gallons treated 801$      617$       614$      735$      725$      

Energy cost per millions of gallons treated 136$       119$       101$       115$       115$       

Total suspended solids (TSS) removal efficiency (percentage 90% 93% 96% 97% 96%

Inspection of Significant Industrial Users 18 17 18 18 21

Restaurant inspections for Grease Reduction Compliance 906 1,364      1,190      1,229      1,017      

FISCAL YEAR
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Operating Indicators by Division (continued) FY 2007 to FY 2016 

Source: District Operational Records 
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Report of Independent Auditor on Internal Control 
over Financial Reporting and on Compliance 

and Other Matters Based on an Audit of  
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with 

Government Auditing Standards 

The Board of Directors 

Metropolitan Sewerage District of Buncombe County, North Carolina 

Asheville, North Carolina 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 

States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 

Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 

statements of Metropolitan Sewerage District of Buncombe County, North Carolina (the 

“District”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial 

statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements, and have 

issued our report thereon dated October 31, 2016. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s 

internal control over financial reporting (“internal control”) to determine the audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the 

financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 

the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 

the District’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 

management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 

prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 

deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 

possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be 

prevented, or detected, and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or 

a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, 

yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first 

paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control 

that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during 

our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material 

weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are 

free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 

laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 

direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, 

providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, 

and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no 

instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 

Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 

compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 

the District’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 

performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s 

internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 

purpose. 

Charlotte, North Carolina 

October 31, 2016 
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